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Board of Directors

Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak Chairman

Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan (Chief Executive)

Mr. Mushtaq Ahmed Khan F.C.A

Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik
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Fax: 042-37230326
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BOARD AND MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

Board Committees:

i) Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik Chairman Independent
Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak Member Non-Executive
Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Member Executive

Mr. Mushtag Ahmed Khan F.C.A Member Non-Executive
Mr. Pervez 1. Khan Member Non-Executive
Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak Member Non-Executive
Mr. Liagat Ali Shaukat Secretary

ii) Investment Committee

Mr. Mushtag Ahmed Khan F.C.A Chairman Non-Executive

Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Member Executive

Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak Member Non-Executive

Mr. Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak Member Non-Executive

Mr. Ashfaqg Ahmed Member Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Liagat Ali Shauka Secretary

iii) Audit Committee

Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik Chairman Independent
Mr. Mushtag Ahmed Khan F.C.A Member Non-Executive
Mr. Pervez I. Khan Member Non-Executive
Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak Member Non-Executive
Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak Member Non-Executive
Mr. Abdul Waheed Ch. Secretary

Management Committees:

iv) Underwriting, Reinsurance & Co-Insurance Committee;

Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak Chairman Non-Executive
Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak Member Non-Executive
Miss. Bushra Hina Mushtaq Member

Mr. Muhammad Alyas Secretary

v) Claims Settlement Committee;

Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Chairman Executive

Mr. Mushtaqg Ahmed Khan F.C.A Member Non-Executive
Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak Member Non-Executive
Mr. Amir Raza Member

Mr. Abdul Waheed Ch. Member

Mr. Ashfaq Ahmed Secretary

vi) Risk Management & Compliance Committee

Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak Chairman Non-Executive
Mr. Amir Raza Member

Mr. Ashfaq Ahmed Member

Miss. Bushra Hina Mushtaq Secretary
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 59th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of The Universal
Insurance Company Limited will be held on Tuesday April 30, 2019 at 10:30 A.M. at the registered
office of the Company at Universal Insurance House, 63-Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore to
transact the following business:-

A.

1.

ORDINARY BUSINESS
To confirm the minutes ofthe Annual General Meeting heldon April27,2018at Lahore.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2018 and reports of the directors and auditors thereon.

To appoint auditors for the year 2019 and to fix their remuneration. The Board on
recommendation of Audit Committee of the company has recommended the appointment of
M/s. ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co. Chartered Accountants as external auditor for the
year 2019 being eligible, have offered themselves forre-appointment.

B. ANYOTHERBUSINESS

NOTES:

Totransact any other business with the permission ofthe Chair.

ByOrder ofthe Board

#

%
(Liaqat Ali Shaukat)

Dated: April 09,2019 Company Secretary

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from April 23, 2019 to
April30,2019 (bothdaysinclusive).

Amember entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his/ her
proxy to attend and vote instead of him/ her. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be
received at the Registered Office ofthe Company duly stamped, signed and witnessed not
later than 48 hours before the meeting. A member shall not be entitled to appoint more than
ONeproxy.

CDC shareholders are requested to bring their original CNIC card, Account, Sub account
numbers and participant's Number in Central Depository Company (CDC) for identification
purpose for attending the meeting. In case of Corporate entity, the Board of Director's
resolution/ Power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced
(unless ithas been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.
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4- Shareholders are requested to immediatel y notify shares registrar of the company promptly
ofany change intheiraddresses, ifany.

5- Members who have not yet submitted photocopies of their valid computerized national
identity cards to the Company are requested to send the same at earliest directly to our share
registrar M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt) Ltd, 7- Bank Square, Lahore.

6- Form ofproxy is appended to the annual report inboth English and Urdulanguages.

7- The audited financial statements of the company for the year ended December 31, 2018 have
been placed on the company website www.uic.com.pk .

8- Members who desire to receive annual financial statements and notice of annual general
meeting ofthe company through email in future are hereby requested to convey their consent
to company secretary at email address info@uic.com.pk via email on a standard request
form which is available on company website. Itis the responsibility of the member to timely
update of any change in their registered email address. Members can request a hard copy of
Audited Financial Statements which shall be provided free of cost within seven days from
the date of requisition.

9- Pursuant to SECP S.R.O. No. 43(1)/2016 dated January 22, 2016, the members can also
exercise their ri ght to vote through e-voting by giving their consentin writing at least 10 days
before the date of meeting to the company on the appointment of Execution Officer by the
intermediary as aProxy.

10- Consent for Video Conference Facility

Pursuant to the provision to the Companies Act, 2017 the members can also avail video
conference facility. In this regard please fill the following and submit at the registered
address of the Company 07 days before holding the general meeting. Ifthe company receives
consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a
geographical location, to participate in the meeting, the company will arrange video
conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. The
Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days
before the date of general meeting.

I/'We of being a member of The Universal
Insurance Co. Ltd., holder of Ordinary Share(s) as per Folio No.
hereby opt for video conference facility at
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TEN YEARS KEY FINANCIAL DATA

{Rupees in million)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Gross Premium 64 b 36 45 68 115 295 464 503 539
Net Premium 3 12 % 28 35 9% 211 292 329 361
Net Claim 2 9) 9 (56) 2 54 102 143 177 182
Investment 443 3 32 187 157 138 135 135 160 115
Underwriting (Loss}/ Profit 39 (9 (@ 83 030 (18) 14 @ an 58
(Loss)! Profit Before Tax 19 45 7 131 @y @71 (68  (110) (103 1
(Loss}/ Profit After Tax 16 # 69 130 (46) 89 66) (65  (86) 8
Paid-up Capital 500 500 416 #6370 300 300 300 26250 210
Cash and Banks % 90 6 108 122 160 62 130 88 159
Total Property & Assets 27 9 805 784 847 93 913 1069 1164 1066
Equity 808 780 644 LR 78 143 208 233 265
EPS (Rs) 032 098 167 35 (8 (o (2) (4200 (458 048
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

| feel pleased in presenting 59" Annual Report and performance view of The Universal Insurance Company Limited on behalf
of theBoard of Directors ofthe Company.

Company Performance:

The Company financials indicators have persistently reflected improvementsfor the last 4 years which is evident from the fact
that, accumulative losses ofthe Company reduced considerably, resulting into upgrading the Company's IF S rating.

Future Outlook:

The improvement in financial results of the Company can be attributed to the board's decision executed in 2014 of closure of
unprofitable branches across the country and advising the management to shift its entire focus on underwriting the group's
business and profitable market business of selected clients. The decision proved fruitful during the period underreview. In this
connection we have upgraded our IT system with the objective to further reinforce intemal control with special emphasis on
risk management aiming not to undemwrite hazardous risks. IT system has also catered the changed environment required by
the regulator for ensuring relevant compliance in all respect. All these measures altogether will contribute toward
strengthening board policy for better management of Company affairs.

Acknowledgement:

| wish to express my sincere appreciation to our valued shareholders, clients, Reinsurers, SECP & financial institutions whose

April 08,2019 Raza Kuli Khan Khattak
Lahore Chairman

cooperation and supportover the year has further strengthened ourmarketimage.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I feel immense pleasure in presenting the 59th Annual Report of the
company with audited financial statements for the financial year ended December 31,2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Universal Insurance Company Limited (the company) is incorporated in Pakistan as a Public Limited
Company since 1958 and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). The Company's principal activity is
non-life insurance business.

PRINCIPALRISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Information about principal risks and uncertainties is given in the corresponding notes 42 in the financial
statements.

OPERATING RESULTS:

The operating financial results of the company for the year ended 31 December, 2018 are stated below.

2018 2017

------Rupees in '000------
Gross premium 63,549 28,324
Netpremium 33,184 12,183
Netclaims 2,366 (9,017)
Underwriting results (38,912) (39,329)
Investment & OtherIncome 15,891 19,864
Profitbeforetaxation 19,497 45,423
Profitafter taxation for the year 15,989 41,452
Earnings per share 0.32 0.98

Review Of Operating Results:
The financial results of the company for the year ended December 31, 2018 are reflecting remarkable

improvement in different segments particularly the Gross Written Premium of the company has enhanced
significantly by 124% in comparison with Gross Written Premium of last year. Similarly Net Written Premium

hasalsoincreased by 172% over the correspondingperiod.
However, the investment & Other income of the company has diminished by Rs. 3.973 million over the

corresponding period in response to high volatility in stock exchange observed during the current financial
year. Inspite of this reduction in investment income the bottom line of the company remained positive. It is
worthwhile to state here that management following the previous practice had again carried out a
comprehensive evaluation of company’s assets and liabilities with special emphasis on its segment of
outstanding claims and after thorough review rationalized its provision with an objective to present very
accurate figures of its liabilities and assets.

Revenue AndReserve
The statement of changes in equity is showing that the company has transferred the balance lying in revenue
reserve to accumulated losses.

Dividend
The directors have not recommended dividend for the year 2018.

IFS Rating
M/s. PACRA realizing the sustainable improvement in the financial performance of the company has decided
to maintain its IFS rating to A- (stable).
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Information Technology (IT)

Inthe light of changed accounting environment and to cater the additional regulatory requirements the existing
IT modules have been configured to cope with changed scenario. Further integration process is underway to
assist the different departments for generating the conducive reports & financial statements and we are
determined to finalize I T development process before the end of first halfof next financial year.

ISO Certification

The Company received ISO 9001:2015 certification from M/s. Lloyd's Register-LRQA, Karachisince May 17,
2003. M/s. Lloyd's Register-LRQA, Karachi has renewed Company's certification ISO 9001:2015 on
September 29, 2018 for next 3 years which exhibits that Company meets the requirement of standard and
maintains satisfactory level of implementation of ISO-Quality Management System.

Statement of Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

The corporate laws, rules and regulations framed there under spell out the overall functions of the Board of
Directors of the company. The Board is fully aware of its corporate responsibilities as envisaged under the Code
of Corporate Governance, prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan andis pleased to
certify that:

(a) The financial statements, prepared by the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the results of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

(b) Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

(¢) Thecompany has applied consistently appropriate accounting policies in preparation of the financial
statements and accounting estimates are onthe basis of prudent and reasonable judgment.

(d) Financial statements have been prepared by the company in accordance with the International
Accounting Standards (IAS), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) or any other
regulation orlaw as applicable in Pakistan. The departure there from, ifany, is disclosed adequately.

(e) The system of internal controlis sound in designand has been effectively implemented and monitored
throughout the year. Internal controls and their implementation are reviewed continuously by the
Internal Audit department and any weakness in controls is timely addressed.

(f) There are no significant doubts upon Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

(g) There hasbeen nomaterial departure from the best practices of Code of Corporate Governance.

(h) Key operating and financial data for the last ten years in summarized form is annexed to this annual
report.

() There areno statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are outstanding
asat 31st December, 2018 except as disclosed in the corresponding notes in the financial statements.

(§) Four directors of the Company have acquired certification under the Director’s Training Program
(DTP) and five directors meets the criteria of eligibility for exemption from certificate.

Related Party Transactions
The related party transactions are approved or ratified by the Board Audit Committee and the Board of
Directors

Holding Company
Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Limited, incorporated in Pakistan, is a holding Company by way ofdirect ownership of
85.96% shares and other indirect shareholding.

Composition of the Board
The Composition of the Board is in line with the requirements of the CCG Regulations. The composition of the
Board isas follows:

Total number of directors

Male

Female
Independent Director
Other Non-executive Directors
Executive Director

—o0 = N \O
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Board Performance Evaluation
The evaluation of Board's role of oversightand its effectiveness is appraised by the Board itself. The main areas

of focus are, but are not limited to, the following :

- Achieving corporate goals and objectives as defined in the Company's vision and mission statements.

- Strategy formulation and dissemination of directors to the management for sustainable planning and
operation; and

- Trainings and upgradation of knowledge and skills of directors

- Evaluation of Board's Committees performance in relation to discharging their responsibilities as per defined
terms of reference.

Board of Directors' Meetings:
During the year, Four (4) Board meetings were held. The number of meetings attended by each Directoris given
hereunder:
No. of Meetings
Name of Directors Attended

Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan

Mr. Mushtag Ahmad Khan - FCA
Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad

Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik

Mr. Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak

W WNWWW=&A&

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend some of the Board meetings due to their
otherengagements.
Nocasual vacancy occurred during the year ended December 31,2018.

Board and Management Committees
The Board of Directors, in compliance with the Code, has constituted following Board and Management

committees which performs according to the terms of reference determined by the Board of the company and
which conforms to the requirements of the code

Audit Committee
Audit Committee comprising of five members, four of whom are non-executive directors and one independent

director whois the chairman of the committee. Four meetings of auditcommittee wereheld duringthe year.

-Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik Chairman
-Mr. Mushtag Ahmad Khan - F.C.A Member
-Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed Member
-Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak Member
-Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak Member

Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
The Board's Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee comprises of following members and the

chairman of the committee is an Independent director. Two meetings were held during the year.

-Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik Chairman
-Mr.Raza Kuli Khan Khattak Member
-Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Member
-Mr. Mushtag Ahmad Khan- F.C.A Member
-Mrs. ShahnazSajjad Ahmed Member
-Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak Member
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Investment Committee
Investment Committee meets on quarterly basis to review the investment portfolio. The Board's Investment
Committee comprises ofthe following members. Four meetings were held during the year.

-Mr. Mushtaq Ahmad Khan - F.C.A Chairman
-Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Member
-Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak Member
-Mr. Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak Member
-Mr. Ashfag Ahmed Member

Underwriting, Re-Insurance & Co-Insurance Committee

This Committee formulates the underwriting policy and regularly reviews the underwriting and premium
policies of the company and ensures adequate reinsurance arrangements for the insurance company's business.
The committee is consisting of following members. Four meetings were held during the year.

-Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak Chairman
-Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak Member
-Miss. Bushra Hina Mushtaq Member

Claims Settlement Committee

Claim Settlement Committee devises the claim settling policy of the Company. It oversees the claims position
of the Company and ensures that adequate claims reserves are maintained. The committee is consisting of
following members. Four meetings were held during the year.

-Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Chairman
-Mr.Mushtag Ahmad Khan - F.C.A Member
-Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak Member
-Mr. Amir Raza Member
-Mr. Abdul Waheed Ch. Member

Risk Management & Compliance Committee
This committee oversees the activities of the risk management function ofthe Company and makes appropriate

recommendations to the Board to mitigate probable risks falling within the purview of the risk management
function. This Committeeis consisting of followingmembers. Four meetings were held during the year.

-Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak Chairman
-Mr. Amir Raza Member
-Mr. Ashfag Ahmed Member

Remuneration of Directors

The Company has a formal policy in this regard in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the CCG
Regulations. The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board itself. However, in accordance
with the Code of Corporate Governance, it is ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his own
remuneration. The Company does not pay remuneration to non-executive directors except fee for attending the
meetings in line with the Board approval. For information on remuneration of Directorsand CEO in FY 2018,
please refernote 34 to the Financial Statements.

Health, Safety and Environment
We strongly believe in maintaining the highest standards in health, safety and environment (HSE) to ensure the

well-being of the people who work with us as well as of the communities where we operate.
Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company considers social, environmental and ethical matters in the context of the overall business
environment. The Company is committed to make conscious effort to consider and balance the interest of all
stakeholders, in particular the community in whichwe live and who form our customer base.
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Internal Audit Function

The Universal Insurance Company Limited has an independent internal audit function who has suitably
designed internal controls to safeguard financial and operational reporting of the Company. The Board Audit
Committee quarterly reviews the appropriateness of resources and authority of this function. The head of
Internal Audit functionally reports to the audit committee. The Board audit committee approves the audit plans,
based on an annual and quarterly asses smentof the operatingareas.

The Internal Audit function carry's out reviews on the financial, operational and compliance controls, and
reports its findings functionally to the Board Audit Committee and administratively to the Chief Executive.

The Board understands its responsibility towards smooth functioning of internal financial controls and
continuously strives to achieve the best practices through its regular governance.

Statement of Compliance

Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is separately annexed in the report at page
No. 24.

Pattern of Shareholding
The pattern of shareholding is separately annexed inthe report atpage No. 86.

Communication with Stakeholders

The Company focuses on the importance of the communication with the stakeholders. The annual, half yearly
and quarterly reports are placed on company's website (www.uic.com.pk) and distributed as specified in the
CompaniesAct,2017. Theactivities of the company are updated on its website ontimely basis.

Trading in Company's Shares

No trading in the shares of the Company was carried out by the Directors, CEO and their spouses and minor
children duringthe financial yearended December31,2018.

Appointment of Auditors
The Auditors M/s. Shinewing Hameed Chaudhri & Co, Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment. The Board of Directors endorses recommendation of the Audit Committee for
their re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the financial year ending December 31, 2019 to the
shareholders for approval.

Future Outlook

Improved financial results of the company for the last four years enabled the Company to approach the banks
for its enlistment on their panel and resultantly some of banks enlisted us on their panel. We are firmly hopeful
other banks will too enlist us after circulation of our current audited financial statements. In addition to it we are
contemplating to restart underwriting the market business by setting up branch network and in this context,
result oriented presentation will be given to the board of director by the management in the forthcoming
meeting to seck the advice of theboard for establishing branchnetwork.

Acknowledgement
We would like to thank the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Pakistan Reinsurance Company

Ltd., State Bank of Pakistan, Other Reinsures and Co-insurers for their continued cooperation and guidance
through-out the year and our valued clients for their continued patronage extended to us.

Date: April 08,2019 For & onbehalf of the Board of Directors
Place: Lahore
A et K
GOHAR AYUB KHAN RAZA KULIKHAN KHATTAK
Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR INSURERS, 2016 &
LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

Nameof [nsurer: The Universal Insurance Company Limited(the Company)

Year Ended: December 31, 2018

This statement is being presented in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers,
2016 (the Code) for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby an insurer
is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance and the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (CCG 2017).

The Company has applied the principles contained inthe Code inthe following manner:
1. Thetotal number of directors are nine as per the following:
a) Male: Seven

b) Female:Two

2. The Company encourages representation of independent, non-executive directors and
Directors representing minority interest on its Board of Directors (the Board). At present

The Board includes:

Category Names

Independent Director Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik
Executive Director Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan
Non-Executive Directors Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Mushtaqg Ahmad Khan F.C.A
Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed

Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak

The independent director meets the criteria of independence as laid down under the Code
andCCG2017.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than five
listed companies, including this Company.

4. All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has
defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a development financial institution
or a non-banking financial institutionor, being a member of a stock exchange, has been
declared as a defaulter by the stock exchange.
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10.

I1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

No casual vacancy occurred on the board during the year ended December 31, 2018.

The Company has prepared a “Code of conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting
policies and procedures.

The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies
along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

All powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions,
including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), other executive directors and the key
officers, have been taken by the Board/ Shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and CCG 2017.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every
quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were
circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were
appropriately recorded and circulated.

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance withthe Actand CCG 2017.

The Board has established a system of sound internal control, which is effectively
implemented at all levels within the Company. The Company has adopted and complied with
all necessary aspects ofinternal controls given in the Code.

Four of the directors have acquired certification regarding the “Directors' Training Program”
(DTP) conducted by the local institutions that meet the criteria specified by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Other five directors possess the minimum
qualification and experience criteria for the exemption of DTPas stipulated in the Code.

No new appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit was made during the year. The Board had approved the remuneration of CFO,
Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit Department.

The Directors' Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of
the Code and CCG 2017and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) and CF Obefore approval of the Board.

The directors, CEO and other executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the
Company other than disclosed inthe pattern of sharehol ding.
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The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting
requirements of the Code and CCG 2017.

The Board has formed the following Management Committees:

Underwriting, Re-insurance & Co-Insurance Committee:

Name ofthe Member Category

Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Knhattak | Chairman
Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Miss. Bushra Hina Mushtaq Member
Mr. Muhammad Alyas Secretary
Claims Settlement Committee:

Name of the Member Category
Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Chairman
Mr. Mushtaq Ahmed Khan F.C.A Member
Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Mr. Amir Raza Member
Mr. Abdul Waheed Ch. Member
Mr. Ashfaq Ahmed Secretary

Risk Management & Compliance Committee:

Name of the Member Category
Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak Chairman
Mr. Amir Raza Member
Mr. Ashfaq Ahmed Member
Miss. Bushra Hina Mushtaq Secretary

The functions of Nominations Committee are being performed by the Board

The Board has formed the following Board Committees:

Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Name of the Member Category
Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik Chairman
Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Member
Mr. Mushtaq Ahmed Khan F.C.A Member
Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed Member
Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Mr. Liaqgat Ali Shaukat Secretary
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20. The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of five members, of whom one
is independent director and fourare non-executive directors. The chairman of the
Committee is an independent director. The composition of the Audit Committee is as
follows:

Audit Committee:

Name of the Member Category
Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik Chairman
Mr. Mushtaq Ahmed Khan F.C.A Member
Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed Member
Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Mr. Abdul Waheed Ch. Secretary

21. The meetings of the Committees, except Ethics, Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee, were held at least once every quarterprior to approval of interim and final
results of the Company and as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the
aforesaid Committees have been formed, documented and advised to the Committees
forcompliance.

22. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function equipped with suitably
qualified and experienced staff who are conversant with the policies and procedures of
the Company and they are involved inthe intemal audit function on a regular basis.

23. The CEO, CFO, Compliance Officer and the Head of Internal Audit possess such
qualification and experience as is required under the Code.The appointed Actuary of the
Company also meets the conditions as laid down in the Code. Moreover, the persons
heading the underwriting, claims, reinsurance, risk management and grievance
functions/ departments possess qualification and experience of direct relevance to their
respective functions, as required under section 12 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000
(Ordinance No. XXXIX 012000):

Name of the Person Designation
Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Amir Raza Principal Officer

Mr. Ashfag Ahmed

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Muhammad Alyas

Compliance Officer and
Head of Reinsurance

Mr. Liagat Ali Shaukat

Company Secretary

Akhtar & Hassan (Pvt.) Ltd. Actuary

Mr. Abdul Waheed Ch. Head of Internal Audit

Miss. Bushra Hina Mushtaq Head of Underwriting and
Risk Management

Mr. Muhammad Rashid Ashraf Head of Claims

Mr. Aftab Rashid Head of Grievance Dept.

24.  The statutory auditors of the Company have been appointed from the panel of auditors
approved by the Commission in terms of section 48 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000
(Ordinance No. XXXIX 0f2000). The statutory auditors have confirmed that they have
been given a satisfactory rating under the quality control review program ofthe Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan(ICAP) and are registered with Audit Oversight
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25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor
children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in

compliance with the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code
ofethics as adopted by ICAP.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelinesinthisregard.

The appointed Actuary of the Company has confirmed that he or his spouse and minor
childrendonotholdshares ofthe Company.

The Board ensures that the appointed Actuary complies with the requirements set out for
him in the Code.

The Board ensures that the investment policy of the Company has been drawn up in
accordance withthe provisions of the Code.

The Board ensures that the risk management system ofthe Company is in place as per the
requirements of the Code.

The Company has set up a risk management function, which carries out its tasks as
covered under the Code.

The Board ensures that as part of the risk management system, the Company gets itself
rated from The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA), which is being used

by its risk management function and the respective Committee as a risk monitoring tool.
The ratingassigned by PACRA on December 07, 2018 is A- with Stable outlook.

The Board has setup a grievance department, which fully complies with the
requirements of the Code.

The Company has not obtained any exemption from SECP in respect ofthe requirements
ofthe Code.

We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code and the CCG 2017
have been complied with.

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors

e Il Mot

Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director

Date: April 08, 2019
Place: Lahore
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE UNIVERSAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in
Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 and Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate
Governance for Insurers, 2016 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of The Universal
Insurance Company Limited (the Company) for the year ended December 31, 2018 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and
risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements
of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions
by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried
out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related
parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price
or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Snire g P | Chand b by .
DAITE: APRIL 08,2019 SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI &CQ, .
LAHORE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Engagement Partner: Nafees ud din
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IMNDEPENMDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMAE UNIVERSAL | NCE NY LIMITED

Repart on the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Qpinlon

Wi have audited the annexed financial statements of THE UNIVERSAL INSURANGCE COMPANY LIMITED
ithe Company), which comprise the statament of financial position a= at December 31, 2018, the statement of
profit ar loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the staterment ef changes in equity, e statement
of cagh flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of sigrificant
accounting policies and ather explanatory information, and we state that we have oblained all the infermaben
and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and beliaf, were necessary for the purposes of the audit

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according o the explanations givan o us, he stalement
of financial pesition, the statement of profit or losz the statement of other comprehensive income, tha
statement of changes in equity and the statemant of cash flows togather with the notes farming part thereot
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the informaton
required by the Insurance Ordinance. 2000 [XXXIX of 2000) and the Companies Act. 2017 (XX of Z017). in
the manner so required and respeclivaly give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at
December 31, 2018 and of the profit, total other comprebensive income, the changes in equily and its cash
fows for the year then ended

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs) 83 applicabla in
Pakistan Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditars’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Coemgaany in
accordance with the International Ethics Standamds Board for Accountants’ Code of EtRics for Profcssional
Accouniants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakiatan {the Code) and we have fulfillad
our ether ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We belisve that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficiant and appropriate to provide a basis far cur opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, wera of most significance in our audit
of tha financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed (nthe context of our audit of the
financial staternents as a whole, and in forming aur epinion thareon, and we do nat pravide a saparaté opunicn
on these matters

Fallowing are the key audit matters:

S.Ma. Key audit matters

1. [GCompliance with laws and regulations

The Companies Act 2017 {the Act) was

How the matter was addressed in our audit
We performed follawing audit procedures
Obtalned an  understanding of the related

promulgated on May 30, 2017, which replaced the
Companiez Ordinance, 1984 and brought changes
in the presentation and disciosures of the financial
statermnents by elimination of duplicatve disclosures

with IFRS disclosure requirerments and incorporation|_

af significant additional disclosures. These changes
are applicable first tima to the Company's financial
statemente for the year ended December 31, 2018,

The changes are considered as a key audit matter
as failure to comply with the requirements of the Act

provisions and schadules of the Act, applicable
ta the Company and prepared documents (o
assess the Company's compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Act,

[iscussed the applicable changes with the
Company's management and thoss charged
with governarce a3 to whether the Company
was in campliance with such changes.

Mainlzined a high level of wagiance when
carrying-out our other audit procedures for

could have financil impact ¢n the Company,

identification of any non-compliance.
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S.No.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

. [Valuation of

Refer notes 5, 6.2, 6.3, 7.2, 19, 23, 32.2, 34 and 47
for changes in disclosures made through the Act.

. |Valuation of investments

The Company's investment portfolio represents 48
per cent of the Company's total assets. The
valuation of the portfolio involves judgement in
selecting the valuation basis for each investment.

The areas that involved significant audit effort and
judgement included investments in Associates,

investments in equity securities and investments in|_

debt securities.

outstanding claims including

Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)

Refer contents of notes 4.4 and 26 of the financial
statements for disclosures of related accounting
policy and claims disclosures.

The Company's outstanding claims constitute 35%

of its total liabilities. Valuation of these outstanding|_

claims involves significant management judgment
regarding uncertainty in the estimation of claims
payments and assessment of frequency and
severity of claims. Outstanding claims are
recognised on intimation of the insured event based
on management judgment and estimation. The
Company maintains provision for IBNR claims
based on the advice of an independent Actuary. The
actuarial valuation process involves significant
judgment and the use of actuarial assumptions.

- Ensured that the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the approved
accounting standards and the Act.

We performed following audit procedures:

|- Assessed the quoted prices with PSX
quotations.

- Assessed whether the valuation process Iis

appropriately designed and captures relevant
valuation inputs.

Tested whether associated controls in respect
of the valuation process are operating properly.

Evaluated the valuation assessment performed
by the Company to identify any potential
impairment in relation to its investments.

We also assessed whether the Company's
disclosures in relation to the valuation of
investments are compliant with the relevant
accounting requirements and the Act.

We evaluated whether the Company's actuarial
methodologies were consistent with those used
in the industry and with prior years. No
inconsistencies were noted.

As historical claims data is a key input for
actuarial valuation process, we tested the
completeness, accuracy and reliability of the
underlying data utilised by management to
support the actuarial valuation.

- Obtained an understanding, evaluated the
design and tested the controls over the process
of capturing, processing and recording of
information related to the claims.

- Obtained an understanding, evaluated the
design and tested the controls related to
recoveries from reinsurance arrangements.

- Tested claims transactions on sample basis
with underlying documentations to evaluate that
whether the claims reported during the year are
recorded in accordance with the requirements of
the Company's policy and insurance regulations.
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S.No.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Contingencies

The Company is subject to litigations involving
different courts, which require management to make

assessment and judgments with respect
likelihood and impact of such litigations.
Management has engaged independent legal

counsel on these matters.

The accounting for and disclosure of contingencies
is complex and is a matter of significance in our
audit because of the judgments required to
determine the level of certainty on these matters.

The details of contingencies along with
management’s assessment are disclosed in note 24
to the financial statements.

Revenue recognition risk

Refer contents of notes 4.2, 4.23 ,25 and 29 to the
financial statements relating to revenue recognition
risk.

The Company receives its revenue primarily from
two main sources that is premiums and investments
income.

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit
matter as it is one of the key performance indicators
of the Company and because of the potential risk
that revenue transactions may not be recognised in
the appropriate period.

to].

- We also evaluated the legal cases in line with

Used the report of an external Actuary to assist
us in evaluation of general principles, actuarial
assumptions and methods adopted for actuarial
valuations by the Actuary of the Company for
determination of IBNR.

Considered the adequacy of Company's
disclosures about the estimates used and the
sensitivity to key assumptions.

In response to this matter, our audit procedures|
included:

Discussing legal cases with the legal
department to understand the management's
view point and obtaining and reviewing the,
litigation documents in order to assess the facts
and circumstances.

Obtaining independent opinion of legal advisors
dealing with such cases in the form of
confirmations.

the requirements of IAS 37: Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets.

The disclosures of legal exposures and
provisions were assessed for completeness and
accuracy.

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter|
included the following:

Obtained an understanding, evaluated the
design and tested the controls over the process
of capturing, processing and recording o

information related to premiums and
investments income.
Assessed the appropriateness of the

Company's accounting policy for recording of
premiums and investments income in line with
the requirements of applicable accounting and
reporting standards.

Tested the policies on sample basis where
premium was recorded close to the year end
and subsequent to the year end, and evaluated
that these were recorded in the appropriate
accounting period.

Tested the investments income transaction on
sample basis where investments income was
recorded close to the year end and subsequent
to the year end, and evaluated that these were
recorded in the appropriate period.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information, which comprises the information included in the
Company's Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Insurance
Ordinance, 2000 (XXXIX of 2000) and Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our auditors' report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000
(XXXIX of 2000) and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (XXXIX of 2000), the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Mr. Nafees ud din.

S"""'-MMM Y ¢,
DATE: APRIL 08,2019 SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI&CO,.
LAHORE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Engagement Partner: Nafees ud din
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31-2018

(Re-stated) (Re-stated)

January 01,
2018 2017 2017
Assets Note ~ ----- Rupees in thousand - - - - -
Property and equipment 6 191,519 180,459 173,831
Investment property 7 21,694 20,201 19,232
Investments in Associates 8 267,554 239,993 186,826
invesimentis
- equity securities 9 121,780 78,001 87,612
- debt securities 10 53,713 53,593 47,377
Loans and other receivables 1 32,140 32,880 31,845
Insurance / reinsurance receivables 12 123,349 125,014 148,833
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 26 34,747 54,317 54,162
Deferred commission expense 27 2,436 845 1,231
Deferred taxation 13 33,191 33,191 33,191
Taxation - payments less provisions 14 9,411 9,246 10,756
Prepayments 15 8,929 2,779 4,131
Cash and bank balances 16 26,464 90,165 5,916
Total Assets 926,927 920,684 804,943
Equity and Liabilities
Capital and reserves attributable to
Company's equity holders
Authorised share capital
75,000,000 (2017: 75,000,000) ordinary shares
of Rs.10 each 750,000 750,000 500,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 17 500,000 500,000 416,180
Capital reserves:
- share premium 18 13,824 13,824 13,824
- others 18 18 18
- surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 19 282,051 269,644 261,275
Revenue reserve 45 0 14,467 14,467
Fair value reserve on available-for-sale investments 235 308 429
Unappropriated profit / (accumulated loss) 11,981 (18,640) (62,312)
Total Equity 808,109 779,621 643,881
Liabilities
Underwriting Provisions
Outstanding claims including IBNR 26 41,365 64,811 78,055
Unearned premium reserves 25 14,331 6,232 7,857
Premium deficiency reserves 0 0 282
Unearned reinsurance commission 27 1,849 796 1,448
Long term deposits 20 278 125 0
Retirement benefit obligations 21 0 10,940 9,400
Insurance / reinsurance payables 22 32,843 39,501 36,910
Unclaimed dividends 555 557 609
Other creditors and accruals 23 27,597 18,101 26,501
Total Liabilities 118,818 141,063 161,062
Contingencies and commitments 24
Total Equity and Liabilities 926,927 920,684 804,943
The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.
i e \C Ml - Y pedo 2
Raza Kuli Khan Khattak ~ Gohar Ayub Khan Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak ~ Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak ~ Amir Raza Ashfaqg Ahmed
CHAIRMAN Chief EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DIRECTOR Principal Officer ~Chief Financial Officer
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PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

Note Rupees in thousand
Net insurance premium 25 33,184 12,183
Net insurance claims 26 (2,366) 9,017
Premium deficiency 0 282
Net commission 27 (3,667) 1,658
Insurance claims (6,033) 10,957
Management expenses 28 (66,063)  (62,469)
Underwriting results (38,912)  (39,329)
Investment loss 29 (11,973) (4,914)
Rental income 876 796
Other income 30 26,988 23,982
Other expenses 31 (4,039) (6,108)
Results of operating activities (27,060)  (25,573)
Finance cost 0 (48)
Share of profit of Associates - net 8 46,557 71,044
Profit before taxation 19,497 45,423
Income tax expense 32 (3,508) (3,971)
Profit after taxation 15,989 41,452

--—-Rupee---

Earnings (after taxation) per share 33 0.32 0.98

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

pestes W Ml ke

RazaKuli Khan Khattak ~ Gohar Ayub Khan Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak ~ Khalid Kuli Khin Khattak ~ Amir Raza Ashfaq Ahmed
CHAIRM AN Chief EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DIRECTOR Principal Officer Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Re-stated)

2018 2017
Rupees in thousand

Profit after taxation 15,989 41,452
Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Unrealised loss on available-for-sale investments (103) (173)

Impact of deferred taxation on remeasurement of

available-for-sale investments 30 52
(73) (121)

Remeasurement (loss) / gain on

retirement benefit obligations - gratuity (1,436) 996

Impact of deferred taxation on remeasurement of

retirement benefit obligations - gratuity 416 (299)
(1,020) 697
Surplus arisen upon revaluation of freehold land
and buildings on freehold land 14,459 10,829
Impact of deferred taxation on recognition of surplus
arisen upon revaluation of buildings on freehold land (1,177) (1,377)
13,282 9,452
Net share of other comprehensive
loss of Associates - net of taxation (669) (72)
Other comprehensive income for the year 11,520 9,956
Total comprehensive income for the year 27,509 51,408

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

[ — e A Q
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RazaKuli Khan Khattak ~ Gohar Ayub Khan Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak ~ Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak ~ Amir Raza Ashfaq Ahmed
CHAIRM AN Chief EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DIRECTOR Principal Officer ~Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGING IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Balance as at December 31, 2016 (reported)
Impact of re-statement - note 5

Balance as at January 01, 2017 (re-stated)

Transfer from surplus on
revaluation of buildings on
account of incremental depreciation

Deferred tax adjustment

Miscellaneous items of Associates
accounted for under equity method

Transaction with owners:
Shares issued during the year

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2017

Other comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2017

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2017

Balance as at December 31, 2017 (re-stated)

Transfer to accumulated loss

Transfer from surplus on
revaluation of buildings on
account of incremental depreciation

Deferred tax adjustment

Miscellaneous items of Associates
accounted for under equity method

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2018

Other comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2018

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2018

Balance as at December 31, 2018

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

st e

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Capital Reserves Fair value (Accumul-
reserve on ated loss) /
- Surpl Revenue available- unappro Total
capital urpluson 1 resarve il
¥ Sha.r : Other || revaluation of for-sale priated
RIomItN fixed assels investments profit
(Rupees in th d)
416,180 13,824 18 0 14,467 429 (62,310) 382,608
0 0 0 261,275 0 0 (2) 261,273
416,180 13,824 18 261,275 14,467 48 (62,312) 643,861
0 0 0 (1,141) 0 0 1,141 0
0 0 0 518 0 0 0 518
0 0 0 (460) 0 0 454 (8)
83,820 0 0 0 0 0 0 83,820
0 0 0 0 0 0 41,452 41,452
0 0 0 9,452 0 (121) 625 9,956
0 0 0 9,452 0 (121) 42017 51,408
500,000 13,824 18 269,644 14,467 308 (18,640) 779,621
0 0 0 0 (14,467) 0 14,467 0
0 0 0 (1,319) 0 0 1,319
0 0 0 809 0 0 0 809
0 0 0 (365) 0 0 535 170
0 0 0 0 0 0 15,989 15,989
0 0 0 13,282 0 (73) (1,688) 11,520
0 0 0 13,262 0 73) 14,300 27,509
500,000 13,824 18 282,051 0 235 11,981 808,109
Mol - 1 e
RazaKuli Khan Khattak ~ Gohar Ayub Khan Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak ~ Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak ~ Amir Raza Ashfaqg Ahmed

CHAIRMAN Chief EXECUTIVE

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR Principal Officer

Chie f Financial Officer
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Stetement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Operating Cash Flows
a) Underwriting activities

Insurance premium received

Reinsurance premium paid

Claims paid

Reinsurance and other recoveries received
Commission paid

Commission received

Management expenses paid

Net cash outflows from underwriting activities
b) Other operating activities

Income tax paid

Other operating payments
Other operating receipts
Loans and other receivables
Other payments - net

Net cash inflows from other operating activities

Total cash outflows from all operating activities

Investment activities

Profit / return received

Dividends received

Rental received

Payment for investments

Proceeds from redemption of investments
Fixed capital expenditure

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Total cash (outflows) / inflows from investing activities

Financing activities

Issue of share capital

Financial charges paid

Total cash inflows from financing activities

Net cash (outflows) / inflows from all activities
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2018

2017

Rupees in thousand

63,549 28,813
(28,180) (16,623
(17,560)  (11,508)
11,318 7,126
(10,457)  (2,298)
5,963 6,164
(57,723)  (50,897)
(33,000)  (39,223)
3.673)| [ (3573
(3.934)| | (5,625)
1,444 13,316
15 (34)
11,789 17,992
5,641 22,076
(27,449)  (17.147)
5,656 4,590
18,495(| 17,828
876 796
(91,111)| | (21,248
30,000 15,000
(324) (760)
156 1,418
(36,252) 17,624
o|[ 83,820

0 (48)

0 83,772
(63,701) 84,249
90,165 5,916
26,464 90,165
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Reconciliation to statement of profit or loss

Operating cash flows

Depreciation expense

Provision for doubtful insurance / reinsurance receivables
Provision for retirement benefit obligations - gratuity
Financial charges

(Loss) / gain on disposal on fixed assets

Decrease in assets other than cash

Decrease in liabilities

Other adjustments

Loss on investments - net

Share of profit of Associates - net of taxation
Fair value gain on investment property
Change in premium deficiency reserve
Dividend income

Assets written-off

Rental income

Profit on savings accounts

Profit after taxation

Definition of cash:

2018

2017

Rupees in thousand

(27,449)  (17,147)
(3,548)  (3,897)
(2,355)  (5,279)
(3,218)  (2,709)

0 (48)
(14) 837

(11,726)  (20,785)
26,899 22,730

(21,411)  (26,298)

(11,973)| [ (5.119)
46,557 71,044

1,493 969
0 282

0 205

(5) (483)

876 796
452 56
37,400 67,750
15,989 41,452

Cash comprises of cash-in-hand, bank balances and other deposits, which are readily convertible
to cash and which are used in the cash management function on a day-to-day basis.

Cash for the purposes of statement of cash flows consists of:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash-in-hand and policy stamps

Bank accounts
Current accounts

Savings accounts

Deposits maturing within 12 months

Total cash and cash equivalents

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2.2

23

2.4
(@)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Legal status and nature of business

The Universal Insurance Company Limited (the Company) is a public limited company
incorporated in Pakistan on May 09, 1958 under the Companies Act, 1913 (now the
Companies Act, 2017). The Company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and is
engaged in non-life insurance business. The registered office of the Company is situated at
Universal Insurance House, 63 - Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore. Presently, the Company
is operating through one (2017: one) branch in Pakistan.

The Company is a Subsidiary of Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Limited (the Holding Company),
which holds 42,981,788 (2017: 42,981,788) ordinary shares of the Company at the year-end.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Insurance Ordinance,
2000, Insurance Rules 2017 and Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017.

In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017, the
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and Insurance Rules 2017 shall prevail

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
for investments at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale investments, which
are stated at fair value, held to maturity investments, which are stated at amortised cost, land
& buildings, which are stated at revalued amounts and the retirement benefit obligations,
which are measured at present value.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupee, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pak Rupees has been
rounded to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses. It also
requires management to exercise judgment in application of its accounting policies. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period
or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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(b) The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to these financial statements or judgment was exercised in
application of accounting policies are as follows:

- Outstanding claims including IBNR notes 4.4 & 26
- Premium deficiency reserves notes 4.5

- Classification of investments notes 4.8, 8 ,9 & 10
- Taxation notes 4.12, 14 & 32

- Retirement benefit obligations notes 4.19 & 21

- Property and equipment notes 4.15 & 6

- Investment property notes 4.16 & 7

- Unearned premium reserves notes 4.17 & 25

- Provision for doubtful receivables notes 4.21 & 12
- Impairment in value of investments notes 4.25 & 9

3. INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO
EXISTING STANDARDS

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to
the Company’s financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the
following dates:

3.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards that
are effective in current year

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRSs are effective for accounting
periods beginning on January 01, 2018 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any
significant effect on the Company’s operations (although they may affect the accounting for
future transactions and events) and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements,
except for the following:

(a) Transfers of investment property; amendments to IAS 40 ‘Investment property’ are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2018. The amendments clarify that an
entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and only when, there is
a change in use. A change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the
definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a
change in management's intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a
change in use. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

(b) The Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) has also brought certain changes with regard to
preparation and presentation of annual and interim financial statements of the Company.
These changes also include change in respect of recognition criteria of surplus on
revaluation of fixed assets as more fully explained in note 5 to these financial statements.

Further, the disclosure requirements contained in the fourth schedule to the Act have been
revised, resulting in the incorporation of significant additional disclosures and elimination of
duplicative disclosures with the IFRSs disclosure requirements.

3.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to published approved accounting
standards that are not yet effective but relevant

There are certain standards, amendments to the IFRSs and interpretations that are
mandatory for companies having accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019
but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's
operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements, except for the
following:
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in associates and joint ventures’ are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019. The amendments clarify that a venture
capital organization and other similar entities may elect to measure investments in associates
and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate or joint venture
separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is
available to non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is
an investment entity, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement
applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity
associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for
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impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 4 'Insurance contract' - Applying IFRS 9 'Financial instruments' with
IFRS 4 are effective for annual period beginning on or after July 01, 2018. The amendments
address issue arising from the different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming new
insurance contract standard IFRS 17 'Insurance contracts'. The amendments introduce two
alternative options for entities issuing contracts within the scope of IFRS 4, notably a
temporary exemption and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption enables eligible
entities to defer the implementation date of IFRS 9. The overlay approach allows an entity
applying IFRS 9 from July 01, 2018 onward to remove from profit or loss the effects of some
of the accounting mismatches that may occur from applying IFRS 9 before IFRS 17 is
applied.

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ is applicable to accounting periods beginning on or after
January 01, 2018. This standard has been notified by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) to be effective for annual periods beginning on or after June
30, 2019. This standard replaces the guidance in IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement’. It includes requirements on the classification and measurement of
financial assets and liabilities; it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces
the current incurred loss impairment model. The Company is yet to assess the full impact of
this standard on its financial statements.

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ is applicable to accounting periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2018. This standard has been notified by the SECP to be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 01, 2018. This standard deals with
revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of the
financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from an entity’'s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when a
customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the use and
obtain the benefits from the good or service. The standard replaces IAS - 18 'Revenue’, and
IAS 11, 'Construction contracts', and related interpretations. The Company is yet to assess
the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.

IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’ is applicable to accounting periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2019. This IFRIC clarifies how the recognition and
measurement requirements of IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’, are applied where there is uncertainty
over income tax treatments. The IFRIC explains how to recognise and measure deferred and
current income tax assets and liabilities where there is uncertainty over a tax treatment. An
uncertain tax treatment is any tax treatment applied by an entity where there is uncertainty
over whether that treatment will be accepted by the tax authority. The IFRIC applies to all
aspects of income tax accounting where there is an uncertainty regarding the treatment of an
item, including taxable profit or loss, the tax bases of assets and liabilities, tax losses and
credits and tax rates. The Company is yet to assess the full impact of this interpretation on its
financial statements.

THEUNlVERSALINSURANCECOMPANYLIMITED| 43 | SECURITY - SERVICE - PROSPERITY



4.1

4.2

4.3

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these financial statements, except for the changes as indicated below in note 5.

Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted
significant insurance risk from another party (the policy holders) by agreeing to compensate
the policy holders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects
the policy holders.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance
contract for the remainder of its life time, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly
during this period, unless all rights and liabilities are extinguished or expired.

Insurance contracts issued by the Company are generally classified in four basic categories,
i.e. Fire and Property, Marine and Transport, Motor and Miscellaneous and are issued to
multiple types of clients with business in engineering, automobiles, cement, power, textile,
paper, agriculture, services and trading sectors, etc. and individuals as well. The tenure of
these insurance contracts depends upon terms of the policies written and vary accordingly.

Fire & Property insurance contracts generally cover the assets of the policy holders against
damages by fire, earthquake, riots & strike, explosion, atmospheric disturbance, flood,
electric fluctuations impact, burglary and loss of profit followed by incident of fire.

Marine & Transport insurance contracts generally provide cover for loss or damage to cargo
while in transit to and from foreign land and inland transit due to various insured perils
including loss of or damage to carrying vessel.

Motor insurance contracts provide indemnity for accidental damage to or loss of insured
vehicles including loss of or damage to third party and other comprehensive car coverage.

Other insurance contracts provide variety of coverage including cover against burglary, loss
of cash in safe, cash in transit and cash on counter, fidelity guarantee, personal accident,
workmen compensation, contractor's all risk, erection all risk, machinery breakdown, boiler
damage, crop and health.

In addition to direct insurance, the Company also participates in risks under co-insurance
contracts from other companies and also accepts risks through re-insurance inward by way
of facultative acceptance on case to case basis provided such risks are within the
underwriting policies of the Company. The nature of the risks undertaken under such
arrangement is consistent with the risks in each class of business as stated above.

The Company neither issues investment contracts nor does it issue insurance contracts with
discretionary participation features (DPF).

Premium

Premium written under a policy is recognised as income over the period of insurance from
the date of issuance of the policy to which it relates to its expiry. Where the pattern of
incidence of risk varies over the period of the policy, premium is recognised as revenue in
accordance with the pattern of incidence of risk. The portion of premium written relating to
the unexpired period of coverage is recognised as unearned premium by the Company.

Reinsurance ceded

The Company enters into reinsurance contracts in the normal course of business in order to
limit the potential for losses arising from certain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums
are accounted for in the same period as the related premiums for the direct or accepted
reinsurance business being reinsured.
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4.4

(a)

(b)

(c)

4.5

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable
are estimated in a manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance
assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the provision for outstanding claims or
settled claims associated with the reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the related
reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are not offset against related insurance liabilities. Income or expenses
from reinsurance contracts are not offset against expenses or income from related insurance
assets.

Reinsurance asseis or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are
extinguished or expired.

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on the reporting date. If there
is an objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the
carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that
impairment loss in the statement of profit or loss.

Claims

Claims are charged to income as incurred based on estimated liability for compensation
owed under the insurance contracts. It includes claims handling costs that are directly related

to the processing and settlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other
recoveries and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

QOutstanding claims (including IBNR)

A liability for outstanding claims is recognised in respect of all claims incurred up to the
reporting date, which is measured at the undiscounted value of expected future payments.
Provision for outstanding claims include amounts in relation to claims reported but not
settled, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and expected claims settlement costs.

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims are recognised as an asset and
measured at the amount expected to be received.

Claims reported but not settled

Provision for liability in respect of claims reported but not settled at the reporting date is made
on the basis of individual case estimates. The case estimates are based on the assessed
amounts of individual losses and where loss assessments have not been carried-out, the
estimates are established in light of currently available information, past experience of similar
claims and in some cases in relation to the sums insured. Case estimates are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the recognised outstanding claim amounts are adequate to cover
expected future payments including expected claims settlement costs and are updated as
and when new information becomes available.

Claims incurred but not reported

The provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is made at the reporting date. In
accordance with SECP Circular no. 9 of 2016, the Company takes actuarial advice for the
determination of IBNR claims. The Expected Loss Ratio method has been used to obtain an
adequate estimate of the IBNR claims. Expected Loss Ratio method has been used in place
of the Basic Chain Ladder method because of consistently declining claims experience of the
Company.

The change in method for estimating IBNR claims has immaterial effect on provision for
claims, reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims and profit for the preceding year.

Premium deficiency reserve (liability adequacy test)

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed separately for each class of
business to ensure the adequacy of the unearned premium liability for that class.
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4.6

4.7

4.8

(a)

(b)

It is performed by comparing the expected future liability, after reinsurance, from claims and
other expenses, including reinsurance expense, commissions and other underwriting
expenses, expected to be incurred after the reporting date in respect of policies in force at
the reporting date with the carrying amount of unearned premium liability. Any deficiency is
recognised by establishing a provision (premium deficiency reserve) to meet the deficit.

The expected future liability is estimated with reference to the experience during the expired
period of the contracts, adjusted for significant individual losses, which are not expected to
recur during the remaining period of the policies and expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable.

The movement in the premium deficiency reserve is recognised as an expense or income in
the statement of profit or loss for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash-in-hand,
cash at banks on current and saving accounts.

Loans to employees
These are recognised at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given.
Investments

Classification of an investment is made on the basis of intended purpose for holding such
investment. Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the
time of purchase and re-evaluates such designation on regular basis.

Investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable to
acquisition except for 'investment at fair value through profit or loss', which is measured
initially at fair value.

All 'regular way' purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which
is the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that investments are impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company applies
the requirements of IAS 39 'Financial instruments: recognition and measurement' to all
investments except for investments in Associates accounted for under equity method, which
are tested for impairment in accordance with the requirements of IAS 36 'Impairment of
assets'.

Investments in Associates

Associates are the entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control.
Investments in Associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Company's share of its Associates' post acquisition profits or
losses, movement in other comprehensive income and its share of post-acquisition
movement in reserves is recognised in statement of profit or loss, statement of
comprehensive income and reserves respectively. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of investments. Distributions received
from an Associate reduce the carrying amount of investment.

Held-to-maturity

Investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity when the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification.
Other long-term investments that are intended to be held-to-maturity are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective yield method. Any premium paid or discount
availed on the acquisition of held to maturity investment is deferred and included in income
for the period on a straight line basis over the term of investment. For investments carried at
amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the
investments are de-recognised or impaired.
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(c)

(d)

4.9

4.10

411

4.12
(@)

Available-for-sale

Investments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may be sold in
response to the need for liquidity, changes in interest rates, equity prices or exchange rates
are classified as available-for-sale.

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, these are stated at market value in accordance with
the requirements of IAS 39 (Financial instruments: recognition and measurement). The
Company uses stock exchange quotations at the reporting date to determine the market
value of its quoted investments whereas fair value of investments in delisted / unlisted
companies is determined by reference to the net assets and financial position of the investee
on the basis of latest available audited financial statements.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investments classified as held-for-trading and those designated as such are included in this
category. Investments are classified as held-for-trading if these are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the short term. Gains or losses on investments held-for-trading are recognised in
statement of profit or loss.

Due from insurance contract holders

These are recognised when due, at fair value of the consideration receivable less provision
for doubtful receivables, if any. Provision for impairment on premium receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all
the amounts due according to original terms of receivable. Receivables are also analysed as
per their ageing and accordingly provision is maintained on a systematic basis.

Insurance / reinsurance payables and receivables

Insurance / reinsurance payables and receivables are carried at cost, which is the fair value
of the consideration to be paid / received in the future for services. However, an assessment
is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the estimated
recoverable amount of that asset is determined and any impairment loss is recognised for
the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount.

Claim recoveries

Claim recoveries receivable from reinsurers are recognised as an asset at the same time as
the claims which give rise to the right of recovery are recognised as a liability and are
measured at the amount expected to be received.

Taxation
Current

Provision for current year's taxation is determined in accordance with the prevailing law of
taxation on income enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and is
based on current rates of taxation being applied on the taxable income for the year, after
taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any, and taxes paid under the Final
Tax Regime. The tax charge also includes adjustments, where necessary, relating to prior
years which arise from assessments finalised during the year.
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(b) Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method in
respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be
utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in statement of profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity; in this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

4.13 Deferred commission expense

Commission costs incurred in obtaining and recording policies of insurance and reinsurance
are being deferred and recognised as an asset in correlation with unearned premium that will
be recognised in the subsequent reporting periods.

4.14 Prepaid reinsurance expense

Premium for reinsurance contracts operative on a proportional and non-proportional basis is
recorded as a liability on attachment of the underlying risks reinsured or on inception of the
reinsurance contract respectively. For proportional reinsurance contracts, the reinsurance
expense is recognised in accordance with the pattern of recognition of premium income to
which they relate. For non-proportional reinsurance contracts, the reinsurance expense is
recognised evenly in the period of indemnity. The portion of reinsurance premium not
recognised as an expense is shown as a prepayment.

4.15 Property and equipment

Fixed assets, except freehold land and buildings on freehold land, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Freehold land is stated
at revalued amount whereas buildings on freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repair and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss during the period in
which these are incurred.

(a) Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is charged to statement of profit or loss applying the reducing
balance method so as to write-off the cost / depreciable amount of the assets over their
estimated useful lives at the rates given in note 6. The Company charges depreciation on
additions from the date when the asset is available for use and on deletions upto the date
when the asset is de-recognised. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed by
management at each financial year-end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.
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(b) De-recognition

An item of fixed assets is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
is included in statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is de-recognised.

4.16 Investment property

Investment property is accounted for under the fair value model in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 40. Subsequent capital expenditure on existing property and gain / loss
on disposals are accounted for in the same manner as for fixed assets.

4.17 Unearned premium reserves

Unearned premium reserves represent the portion of premium written relating to the
unexpired period of coverage. Unearned premium reserves are being calculated as a
proportion of the gross premium of each policy, determined as the ratio of the unexpired
period of the policy and the total period, both measured to the nearest day as specified in the
Insurance Rules for non-life insurance.

4.18 Unearned reinsurance commission

Commission income receivable from reinsurers is taken to statement of profit or loss in
accordance with the pattern of recognition of the reinsurance premium to which these relate.

4.19 Retirement benefit obligations
(a) Gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all permanent employees who are
entitled to gratuity equivalent to last drawn gross salary multiplied by the number of years of
service upto the date of leaving the Company. The latest actuarial valuation was carried-out
as at December 31, 2018, using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method' to determine the liability
on the reporting date. The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in
the statement of financial position immediately, with a charge or credit to other
comprehensive income in the period in which these occur. Amounts recognised in statement
of profit or loss are limited to current and past service costs, gains or losses on settlements
and net interest income / expense.

(b) Compensated absences

The Company accounts for liability in respect of employees' compensated absences in the
period in which these are earned.

4.20 Other creditors and accruals

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is the fair value
of the consideration to be paid in future for goods or services received, whether or not billed
to the Company.

4.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation, legal or constructive,
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
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4.22

4.23
(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws,
regulations, public expectations, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in
future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognised
provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was originally
recognised as part of cost of an asset.

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company

- has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company; or

- has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, or the amount of obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Revenue recognition

Premium income earned

Premium written under a policy is recognised as income over the period of insurance from
the date of issuance of the policy to which it relates to its expiry as follows:

- for direct business evenly over period of the policy.

- for proportional re-insurance business evenly over the period of underlying
insurance policies.

Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the period of policy, the premium is
recognised as revenue in accordance with the pattern of incidence of risk.

Administrative surcharge

This represents documentation and other charges recovered by the Company from policy
holders in respect of policies issued at the rate of 5% of the premium restricted to a
maximum of Rs.2,000 per policy. Administrative surcharge is recognised as revenue at the
time the policies are written.

Commission income

Commission income from reinsurers is recognised at the time of issuance of the underlying
insurance policy by the Company. This income is deferred and brought to the account as
revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition of the reinsurance premium to which it
relates. Profit / commission, if any, which the Company may be entitled to under the terms of
reinsurance, is recognised on accrual basis.

Dividend income and bonus shares

Dividend income is recognised when the right of receipt is established. Bonus shares are
accounted for by increase in number of shares without any change in the value of
investments.
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(e)

(A

4.24

4.25
(@)

(b)

Investment income
Income from held-to-maturity investments

Income from held-to-maturity investments is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into
account the effective yield on the investments.

Income from available-for-sale investments

- Return on fixed income investments

Return on fixed income securities is recognised on a time proportion basis.

- Gain / loss on sale of available-for-sale investments

Gain / loss on sale of available-for-sale investments is included in income currently.
- Income from investments at fair value through profit or loss

Gain / loss on sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss is included in income
currently.

Rental and other income
Rental and other income is recognised on accrual basis.
Management expenses

Management expenses, which are directly attributable to the underwriting business, are
allocated in accordance with the volume of each class of business. Portion of management
expenses, which are not allocable to the underwriting business, are categorised as other
expenses. These expenses are charged to statement of profit or loss at the time the policies
are accepted.

Impairment
Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more
events had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flow of that asset.

An impairment loss, in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, is calculated
as a difference between its carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of
available-for-sale financial asset is calculated with reference to its current fair value.

Significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each
year-end to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised
whenever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss. A previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount
cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in statement of profit or loss.
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4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include current & other
accounts, investments, insurance / reinsurance receivables, reinsurance recoveries against
outstanding claims, loans and other receivables, outstanding claims, insurance / reinsurance
payables and other creditors & accruals. Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of instrument. Initial recognition
is made at fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable to acquisition except for
'financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss', which are measured initially at fair
value.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the Company looses control of the contractual
rights that comprise the financial asset. The Company looses such control if it realises the
rights to benefit specified in the contract, the rights expire or the Company surrenders those
rights. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on subsequent measurement and de-
recognition is charged to the profit or loss currently. The particular measurement methods
adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic earnings per share for its shareholders. Basic earnings per
share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equity
as a deduction from the proceeds.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised as liability in the Company's financial
statements in the year in which these are approved.

Foreign currencies

All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in Pak
Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date whereas transactions in
foreign currencies during the year are initially recorded in functional currency at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the transaction date. All non-monetary items are translated in Pak
Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date when fair
values are determined. Exchange gains and losses are included in income currently.

Segment reporting

The Company accounts for segment reporting using the classes of business as specified
under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Insurance Rules, 2017 as the primary
reporting format based on the Company's practice of reporting to the management is on the
same basis.

As the operations of the Company are carried-out in Pakistan, information relating to
geographical segment is not considered relevant.
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Assets, liabilities and capital expenditure, that are directly attributable to segments, have
been assigned to them whereas the carrying amount of certain assets used jointly by two or
more segments have been allocated to segments on a reasonable basis. The assets and
liabilities, which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis, are
reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

Section 235 (Treatment of surplus arising out of revaluation of fixed assets) of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 has not been carried forward in the Companies Act, 2017.
Previously, section 235 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 specified the accounting
treatment and presentation of the surplus on revaluation of fixed assets, which was not in
accordance with the IFRS requirements. Accordingly, in accordance with the requirements of
IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment, surplus on revaluation of fixed assets will now be
presented under equity.

Following the application of IAS 16, the Company’s policy for surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets stands amended as follows:

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of freehold land and buildings on
freehold land are recognised, net of tax, in statement of other comprehensive income and
accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a
decrease previously recognised in statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised
in profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first
recognised in statement of other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining
surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year,
the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset
charged to profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost, net of tax, is
reclassified from the revaluation surplus on fixed assets to retained earnings.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with
the requirements of IAS 8 ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’
and comparative figures have been restated.

The effect of change in accounting policy is summarised below:

As at December 31, 2017 As at December 31, 2016
revtusl fe Restato: ravtusl fe  Regdle
P y restated  ment P y restated ment
reported reported
 ——— Rupees in thousand -=------=esss=-zsueu=--
Effect on statement of
financial position
Investments in associates 239,245 748 239,993 186,072 754 186,826
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 268,895 749  (269,644) 260,519 756 (261,275)
Equity 0 269,644 269,644 0 261,275 261,275
Effect on statement of
changes in equity
Capital reserve 0 269,644 269,644 0 261,275 261,275
Accumulated loss (18,639) (1)  (18,640) (62,310) (2) (62,312)
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6.1 Surplus on revaluation

Latest revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land has been carried-out by
Sadruddin Associates (Pvt.) Lid. (PBA Approved Valuers & Real Estate Appraisers,
Business & Finance Centre, Suite # 1004, 10th Floor, 1.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi) as at
December 31, 2018 on the basis of present market value of freehold land and current
depreciated market value of buildings. Had there been no revaluation, carrying value of
buildings on freehold land as at December 31, 2018 would have been lower by Rs.29.016
million (2017: Rs.26.271 million).

6.2 Based on the aforementioned revaluation reports dated December 31, 2018, the forced sale
values of the freehold land and buildings on freehold land have been assessed at Rs.146.697
million.

6.3 Freehold land of the Company is located at 63-Sharah-e-Quaid-e- Azam, Lahore; total
covered area is 2,080 square yards.

6.4 Disposal of fixed assets

Accumulated  Book Sale  (Loss)/

Description Cost I Mode of disposal Sold to:
| eeerininnineen Rupeesin thousands - -« «««««=- |
Office Equipment
Photo copier machine 100 75 25 1 (18)  Negotiation  Mr. Zahoor Ahmed, Lahore
Air-conditioning equipment m 4 b b (83) wedow=  Muhammad Aslam, Lahore
e (10 seee m 4 ] b (B) oo e e (10 seee
v (10 e i 5 1% 1 (N oweee e e (10 e
25 8 97 % M
Vehicles
Honda CD-T0 54 4 6 18 12| Companypolicy Mr. Ghulam Jaffar, Lahore (employee)
semee (10 e M 12 vl 64 2| wedo==  Mr Arshad Mahmood, Lahore (employee}
weeee (10 e 5 56 3 12 9| Negotiation  Allah Ditta, Lahore
sve (0 seeme 70 (] 1 1 0] w=domems e (10 2o
weee 0 e 5 50 4 8 4| --do--  Syed AliFaisal, Lahore
Honda CG-125 86 69 17 11 0| ~=do-- wmee (0 e
mn 304 7 130 §
2018 102 532 170 156 (14)
007 2,069 2388 581 1418 837
6.5 Assets written-off during the year
Particulars Cost 2‘;‘::::: I:t::,: ?:I:::

[ ----Rupeesinthousand---- |

Furniture and fixtures 33 30 3
Vehicle 61 59 2
2018 94 89 5
2017 4,560 4,077 483
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7.1

7.2

Investment property

Opening balance
Unrealised fair value gain upon revaluation:
Opening balance

Gain arisen upon revaluation
carried-out during the year

Closing balance

Closing book value

2018 2017

Note Rupees in thousand
17,282 17,282
2,919 1,950
30 1,493 969
4,412 2,919
21,694 20,201

The management, during the financial year ended December 31, 2016, has transferred its
properties located at Mumtaz Centre and Eden Centre, Lahore having aggregate book value
of Rs.17.282 million to Investment Property as it intends to earn rentals against these

properties.

Based on the revaluation reports of Sadruddin Associates (Pvt.) Ltd. dated December 31,
2018, forced sale values of the Company's investment properties have been assessed at

Rs.17.355 million.
Investments in Associates - Quoted

Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd. (BWM)

Carrying value at beginning of the year
8,940 (2017: 8,940) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

Share of profit after taxation

Less: dividend received

Changes in comprehensive (loss) / income
Share of items directly recognised in equity

Share of surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment

Share of items directly recognised in
equity of Associated Company- restated

Share of incremental depreciation and
surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment of BWM - restated

Ghandhara Industries Ltd. (GIL)

Carrying value at beginning of the year
2,368,296 (2017: 1,184,148) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
(including 1,184,148 bonus shares received during the year)

Share of profit after taxation

Less: dividend received

Changes in comprehensive loss

Share of items directly recognised in equity

Share of surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment of GIL

(Re-stated) (Re-stated)
2018 2017 2016
-=-=--Rupees inthousand - - - -

2,441 2,448 1418
16 33 73
(22) (45) (45)
(6) 3 (8)

6 8 7

0 0 249

0 1 2

(7) (7) 756
2,428 2,441 2,448

237,552 184,378 138,088
46,541 71,011 46,501
(18,473) (17,762) (11,841)

(658) (75) (20)
164 0] 0
0 0] 11,650

265,126 237,552 184,378
267,554 239,993 186,826
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8.1

8.2

8.3

9.1

Market values of the Company's investments in BWM and GIL as at December 31, 2018
were Rs.431 thousand (2017: Rs.492 thousand) and Rs.650.689 million (2017: Rs.653.744
million) respectively.

Provisions of section 208 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, now section 199 of
the Companies Act, 2017, were duly complied with for making investments in BWM and GIL.

The Company's interests in its Associates were as follows:

Revenues for the Profit ater
Couitiyor Assets as at Liabilities as o cktieNe taxation for the %
Company Name . December at December pe period of twelve Interest
Incorporation months ended
3, A, Mo camber 3 months ended  held
" December 31,
[ --------------- Rupeesinthousand - «--«--u--
Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd.
2018 Pakistan 3,362,244 687,897 529,979 16,917 0.09
2017 2,498,266 604,542 792,707 36,193 0.09
Ghandhara Industries Ltd.
2018 Pakistan 17,078,796 12,303,900 18,726,462 837,336 5.56
2017 9274795 4995993 14,752,104 1.2071471 5.56
Investments in equity securities 2018 2017
Note Rupees in thousand
Availabie-for-saie investments 5.1 506 609
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 9.2 121,274 77,392
121,780 78,001
Available-for-sale investments
o b | December 31,2018 December 31, 2017
LS Unrealiseq | . || No-0fshares Unealsed | .
W Cost in/ Caming) s Cost in/ g
December 31, ga value (| December 31, . ga value
018 (impairment) o017 (impairment)
Listed shares -«=+Rupees in thousand - - - --- - Rupees in thousand - - -
Hamid Textile Mills Ltd, 49,000 490 (490) 0 49,000 490 (490) 0
Pakistan National Shipping Corporation 888 A bij 5 888 24 68 92
Unlisted shares
Nowshera Engineering Works Ltd. * 0 0 0 0 e 1 M o
Fawad Textile Mils Ltd. * 0 0 0 0 XM 2 (28 0
Mutual fund
JS Growth Fund 2867 135 0 455 2867 135 k') 517
649 (143) 506 928 (3199 609

*These investments having nil carrying values have been written-off as approved by the
Company's Investment Committee in its meeting held on April 02, 2018.
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9.2 Investments at fair value through profit or loss

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
.. |Carrying || Camying
No.ofuns || Cost | "% | it | Mo cons | Cost | 179 | g
loss (loss)/ gain
value value
Mutual funds === Rupees n thousand - - - ----Rupegs inthousand - - -
HBL Growth and Cash Fund
(formerly PICIC Growth Fund) 13600 50 (80) M0 13500 508 (1%) 38
NAFA lslamic Stock Fund 11,817,196 125,036 (4002) 121034 6896329 64691 12318 77009
(4.262) 124,214 2192 1739
10. Investments in debt securities (Held to maturity)
No. of certificates Face value Value of certificates
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017

Pakistan Investment Bonds - PIBs

(including accrued interest) 8 7 51,500 53,713 53,593
Maturity Coupon 2018 2017
date rate % Rupees in thousand
Pakistan Investment Bond July 18, 2018 11.50 0 5,251
-do- July 18, 2018 11.50 0 15,754
-do- July 22, 2020 12.00 5,174 5,113
-do- March 26, 2020 9.25 5,709 5,768
-do- April 21, 2021 7.75 5,179 5,224
-do- April 21, 2019 7.00 10,159 10,235
-do- April 21, 2021 7.75 6,201 6,248
-do- April 21, 2019 7.00 5,059 0
-do- July 19, 2022 12.00 5,425 0
-do- July 19, 2022 12.00 10,807 0
53,713 53,593

10.1 Market value of these PIBs as at December 31, 2018 was Rs.50.930 million
(2017: Rs. 50.755 million). Profit on PIBs is received bi-annually.

10.2 Investments in PIBs have been made to meet the statutory requirements of section 29(2)(a)
of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.
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11.

1141

12.

121

12.2

123

124

Loans and other receivables 2018 2017

Note Rupees in thousand
Advance to employees against expenses 4 688
Security deposits 1,292 1,295
Sales tax - refundable 82 190
Tax paid under protest - refundable 241 5,500 5,500
Forced tax recovery 242 138 138
Federal excise duty - refundable 244 23,831 23,831
Loans to employees - unsecured, considered good 11.1 153 168
Others 1,140 1,070
32,140 32,880

These represent interest free loans given to employees in accordance with the policy of the

Company. These are recoverable in equal monthly instalments.

Insurance / reinsurance receivables - Unsecured and considered good

Due from insurance contract holders 87,511 87,511
Less: provision for impairment of receivables from
insurance contract holders 12.3 (87,511) (87,501)
0 10
Due from other insurers 111,147 112,634
Due from reinsurers 37,118 34,941
Less: provision for impairment of due from other
insurers / reinsurers 12.4 (24,916) (22,571)
123,349 125,004
123,349 125,014

The balances as at December 31, 2018 relating to insurance / reinsurance receivables are
although unconfirmed but are considered to be accurately stated by the management.

No balance was due from Associated Companies as at December 31, 2018 and December

31, 2017.

Provision for doubtful receivables from insurance contract holders

Balance as at January 01, 87,501 84,599

Provision made during the year 10 2,902

Balance as at December 31, 87,511 87,501

Provision for doubtful receivables from other insurers / reinsurers

Balance as at January 01, 22,571 20,194

Provision made during the year 2,345 2,377

Balance as at December 31 , 24916 22,571
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13.

13.1

14.

15.

16.

Deferred taxation - net
Note
This is composed of the following:

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:
- accelerated tax depreciation allowances
- surplus on revaluation of buildings
- surplus on revaluation of investment property

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:
- unused tax losses

- provision for doubtful insurance /
reinsurance receivables and others

- retirement benefit obligations - gratuity

- minimum tax recoverable against normal tax
charge in future years

Deferred tax asset
Less: deferred tax asset not recognised

Net deferred tax asset recognised

2018

2017

Rupees in thousand

1,666 1,752
11,906 11,938
1,279 876
14,851 14,566
46,930 67,160
32,994 33,629
5,102 4,044
1,516 823
86,542 105,656
71,691 91,090
38,500 57,899
33,17 33,191

Net deferred tax asset recognised in these financial statements has been restricted to
Rs.33.191 million (2017: Rs.33.191 million) on the ground of prudence. The management
intends to re-assess the recognition of deferred tax asset as at December 31, 2018.

Taxation - payments less provisions

Advance income tax 12,844 14,329
Provision for taxation (3,433) (5,083)
9,411 9,246
Prepayments
Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded 8,329 2,415
Others 600 364
8,929 2,779
Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash-in-hand 35 0
Policy stamps 1 1
36 1
Cash at banks
- current accounts 3,348 24,126
- savings accounts 16.1 22,678 66,038
26,026 90,164
Deposits maturing within 12 months
Term deposit receipts 16.2 1,257 1,257
Provision for impairment (855) (1,257)
16.3 402 0
26,464 90,165
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16.1 Rates of profit on these accounts, during the year, ranged from 3.75% to 8.00%
(2017: 3.25% to 3.78%) per annum.

16.2 These represent term deposit receipts issued by financial institutions as the chances of
realisation of these deposits are bleak, these have been fully provided for.

16.3 The Company, subsequent to the reporting date, has received Rs.402 thousand from the
Joint Official Liquidator of Innovative Investment Bank Ltd. against the claims lodged during
the year. Accordingly, provision balance has been reduced.

17. Share capital 2018 2017
Note Rupees in thousand
17.1 Authorised share capital
2018 2017
Number of shares
75,000,000 75,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 750,000 750,000

17.2 lIssued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

34,720,000 34,720,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10
each fully paid in cash 347,200 347,200

15,280,000 15,280,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10
each issued as fully paid

bonus shares 152,800 152,800
50,000,000 50,000,000 500,000 500,000
AT n Al s s o e & lssmisnce bl sommm
1.9 MIVUYCINICIHIL uunn IH e ,’Gﬂl
50,000,000 41,617,977 As at January 01, 500,000 416,180
0 8,382,023 Issue of fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs.10 each 17.5 0 83,820
50,000,000 50,000,000 500,000 500,000

17.4 \Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to the
shareholding of the shareholders.

17.5 The Company, during the preceding year, had issued 8,382,023 ordinary shares of Rs.10
each at par value of Rs.10 per share. This right issue, under section 86(3) of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now section 83 of the Companies Act, 2017), was offered to
meet the minimum paid-up capital requirement as laid down by the SECP for non-life
insurers vide S.R.O No. 828(1)/2015 dated August 18, 2015.

18. Share premium reserve

The Company, during the financial year ended December 31, 2015, had issued 4,617,977
shares by way of otherwise than right under section 86(1) of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 to its Holding Company at a price of Rs.12.99 per share. Share premium
amounting Rs.13.820 million was received on this issue.

19. Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets - net

This represents surplus over book value resulted from revaluations of freehold land and
buildings on freehold land carried-out during current and prior years adjusted only by surplus
realised on disposal of revalued assets, incremental depreciation arising out of revaluation
and deferred taxation. The year-end balance has been arrived at as follows:
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20.

21.

211

(Re-stated) (Re-stated)

2018 2017 2016
----- Rupees in thousand - - - - -
Balance as at January 01, 177,864 168,176 161,389
Add: surplus arisen during the year on:
- freehold land 10,400 6,240 4,160
- buildings on freehold land 4,059 4,589 4,429
14,459 10,829 8,589

Less: transferred to accumulated loss on account of
incremental depreciation for the year (1,319) (1,141) (1,802)

191,004 177,864 168,176

Less: deferred tax on:

- opening balance of surplus 12,818 11,950 11,727

- surplus on revaluation carried-out during the year 1,177 1,377 1,185

- incremental depreciation for the year (395) (342) (577)
13,600 12,985 12,335

Add: resultant adjustment due to reduction in tax rate 414 167 385

177,818 165,046 156,226

Share of surplus on revaluation of fixed assets of
Associates accounted for under equity method -

net of deferred taxation - restated 104,233 104,598 105,049
Balance as at December 31, 282,051 269,644 261,275
Long term deposits

These interest-free deposits have been received in accordance with the Company's Hire
Purchase Policy (Motorbike) and against these deposits motorbikes have been provided to
the respective employees. These deposits are adjustable after specified periods by transfer
of title of motorbikes to the respective employees.

Retirement benefit obligations - gratuity 2018 2017
Note Rupees in thousand
Statement of financial position reconciliation
Present value of defined benefit obligations 15,104 10,940
Less: balance classified under
other creditors and accruals 231 (15,104) 0
0 10,940

The Company has decided to cease its Gratuity Scheme obligations with effect from
December 31, 2018 and settle the liability as at December 31, 2018; thus, the actuarial
liability as at December 31, 2018 is nil.

Net movement in liability

Liability as at January 01, 10,940 9,400
Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss 21.3 3,218 2,709
Benefits paid during the year (490) (173)
Remeasurement recognised in other

comprehensive income 21.4 1,436 (996)
Liability as at December 31, 15,104 10,940
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21.2 Movement in defined benefit obligations 2018 2017

Note Rupees In Thousand
Obligation as at January 01, 10,940 9,400
Current service cost 2,273 1,896
Interest cost 945 813
Actuarial loss / (gain) 214 1,436 (996)
Benefits paid (490) (173)
Obligation as at December 31, 15,104 10,940

21.3 Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 2,273 1,896
Interest cost 945 813
3,218 2,709

21.4 Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income

Loss due to change in financial assumptions 369 14
Loss / (gain) due to change in experience adjustments 1,067 (1,010)
1,436 (996)

21.5 Principal actuarial assumptions are as follows :

The future contribution rates of this scheme include allowance for deficit and surplus.
Projected unit credit method, based on the following significant assumptions, is used for

valuation:

2018 2017
Discount rate - per annum 13.25% 8.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary - per annum 12.25% 7.25%

21.6 Mortality was assumed to be based on SLIC 2001-05 ultimate mortality rates, with moderate
rate of employee turnover.

21.7 Historical information

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
......... Rupees InThousand=========
Liability for defined benefit obligation 15,104 10,940 9,400 6,714 4,596
Remeasurement loss / (gain) on
obligation 1,436 (996) 529 205 (334)
22. Insurance / reinsurance payables 2018 2017
Rupees In Thousand
Due to Insurance contract holders 7,644 9,673
Due to other insurers / reinsurers 25,199 29,828

32,843 39,501

221 The balances as at December 31, 2018 relating to insurance / reinsurance payables are
although unconfirmed but are considered to be accurately stated by the management.
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23. Other creditors and accruals 2018 2017

Note Rupees in thousand
Commission payable 4,545 4,834
Federal excise duty 1,747 792
Federal insurance fee 110 26
Accrued expenses 1,344 3,988
Income tax deducted at source 408 177

Gratuity payable to:

- key management personnel 10,425 0
- other employees 4,679 0
231 15,104 0
Sundry creditors 1,348 4,451
Leave encashment payable 2,490 2,540
Security deposit against rent 280 280
Deposits against performance bonds 23.2 201 993
Others 20 20
27,597 18,101

23.1 Employees' Provident Fund shall be established with effect from January 01, 2019;
accordingly, gratuity benefits payable have been classified and grouped under other creditors
and accruals,

23.2 The Company, during the year based on its legal Advisors' advice, has written-back these
deposits aggregating Rs.792 thousand received as collateral at the time of issuance of
guarantees against premium receivable.

24, Contingencies and commitments

241 The Income Tax Department (the Department), during June, 2015, had passed an order
under section 161(1)(a)(b) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) for the tax
year 2009 creating a demand of Rs.8.586 million with default surcharge amounting Rs.8.447
million under section 205 of the Ordinance. The Company, during the financial year ended
December 31, 2015, had filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals)
CIR(A) against the said order. The Company, however, had paid Rs.5.500 million under
protest and grouped this amount under loans and other receivables (note 11). The CIR(A),
during the financial year ended December 31, 2016, had decided the appeal in the
Company's favour. The Company had applied for the refund of forced recovery of Rs.5.500
million made by the Department, which has filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal
against the order of CIR(A), which is pending adjudication.

24.2 The Department, vide order dated June 27, 2014 for the tax year 2008, had created tax
demand of Rs.50.990 million under section 121 (Best judgement assessment) of the
Ordinance. Subsequently as per directions of the Federal Tax Ombudsman (FTO), the
Commissioner on February 16, 2016 had vacated the order passed by the Department on
June 27, 2014 and remanded it back to the Department for making fresh assessment in
accordance with law. The Department, during January 2015, had filed a representation
before the President of Pakistan, who, on May 30, 2016, had accepted the representation of
the Department and set-aside the impugned recommendations of the FTO as having being
passed without jurisdiction.
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24.3

24.4

245

As per directions contained in the decision of the President of Pakistan, the Commissioner's
order dated February 16, 2016 has become infructuous and void ab initio and the original
order dated June 27, 2014 stands restored. The Company has filed an appeal before the
CIR(A) during July, 2016 against the order dated June 27, 2014.The Department had made a
forced recovery of Rs.138 thousand on June 30, 2016, which has been grouped under loans
and other receivables (note 11). The CIR(A), vide order dated October 10, 2016, has decided
the appeal in the Company's favour.

The Company has filed a civil suit against Premier Alliance Industries Ltd. for recovery of
Rs.7.300 million in lieu of issuance of insurance guarantee. The Company's suit has been
decreed against the defendant and now execution proceeding is pending before the Civil
Court, Lahore.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue, during the financial year ended December 31,
2016, had passed three orders under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 relating to tax years 2013,
2014 and 2015 creating federal excise duty liability of Rs.15.529 million, Rs.9.497 million and
Rs.7.102 million respectively (total Rs.32.128 million). The Company, during these years, had
paid sales tax to respective Provincial Governments as after the 18th Constitutional
amendment, it had become a provincial matter. The Company, during the financial year
ended December 31, 2016, had filed appeals before the Commissioner Appeals, who
rejected these appeals. The Sales Tax Department of Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) on
December 30, 2016 had effected forced recoveries aggregating Rs.23.831 million by
attaching the Company's bank accounts. The Company, thereafter, had filed appeals before
the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), Lahore Bench. The aforementioned forced
recoveries have been accounted for as Federal Excise Duty Refundable and grouped under
loans and other receivables (note 11). The ATIR, during the preceding year, had accepted
the Company's appeals and vacated the orders of the Authorities below being illegal, void ab
initio and not sustainable in the eye of law.

The Company, thereafter, had applied for refund before the FBR and also had to seek
Federal Tax Ombudsman’s (FTO) intervention as the FBR paid no attention to the
Company's request for refund. However, the Honourable FTO passed the order against the
Company against which the Company filed a review petition before the FTO, which was also
decided against the Company. Lastly, the Company, against order of the FTO, filed a
representation before the Honourable President of Pakistan, who also decided against the
Company. Being aggrieved from the said order of the President, the Company has filed a writ
petition before the Lahore High Court, Lahore, which is pending adjudication.

Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Ltd. (the Holding Company) , during the preceding year, had refunded
Rs.12.600 million to the Company. The Company had paid this amount to the Holding
Company during the year ended December 31, 2012 on account of gratuity benefits of Mr.
Sardar Khan (Ex-Managing Director of the Company). The Holding Company was of the view
that Ex-Managing Director was required to adjust certain claims against him. Since, no
settlement could be succeeded between the Holding Company and Ex-Managing Director,
the Holding Company had refunded the aforementioned amount. No provision against the Ex-
Managing Director's claim amounting Rs.20.090 million on account of gratuity along with
profit, mark-up, costs, etc. has been made in these financial statements as the management
is confident of a favourable outcome of the litigation. The appeal filed by the Company
against Ex-Managing Director has been allowed by the Additional District Judge, Lahore vide
order dated November 10, 2018 and judgment of the Civil Judge dated January 09, 2017,
which was passed against the Company has been set aside. The case has been remanded
back to the Civil Judge to decide the case afresh.
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24.6 Nazir Rice Mills (Pvt.) Ltd., Sialkot, against the Company, had filed an application before the
Honourable Insurance Tribunal, Lahore for recovery of Rs.347 million. The Company had
rejected the claim on the basis of survey report. The said case has been transferred from the
Insurance Tribunal, Lahore to the Honourable Insurance Tribunal, Sialkot, which has
dismissed the application during January, 2019 due to non-appearance.

24.7 Sheikh Magbool Elahi had filed an application before the Insurance Tribunal, Lahore against
six insurance Companies for recovery of Rs.150 million. UBL Insurers Ltd. is the leading
Company whereas the liability of the Company, if any, is to the extent of 15%. The said case
was transferred from the Insurance Tribunal, Lahore to the Honourable Insurance Tribunal,
Multan, which during the year, has dismissed the case due to non-prosecution.

24.8 Ghulam Ali Zahid (the Appellant) had filed an appeal, before the Lahore High Court, Lahore
under section 124 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, against order of the Insurance Tribunal,
Lahore, which dismissed the application of the Appellant during December, 2008. The appeal
was decided by the Lahore High Court and the case was remanded back to the Insurance
Tribunal, Lahore for recording evidence on additional issues. The Insurance Tribunal,
Lahore, during the year, has again dismissed the case for non-prosecution.

249 Cases filed by Fashion Guide International, Baig Trading Corporation and Rana Basit Rice
Mills (Pvt.) Ltd. before the Insurance Tribunal asking for the decrees of Rs.33.884 million,
Rs.56.010 million and Rs.38.114 million respectively are pending adjudication. The

management is confident about merits of the Company's cases as the survey reports are in
the Company's favour.

24.10 No commitments were outstanding as at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

25. Net insurance premium 2018 2017
Rupees in thousand
Written gross premium 63,549 28,324
Add: unearned premium reserve opening 6,232 7,857
Less: unearned premium reserve closing 14,331 6,232
Premium earned 55,450 29,949
Less: reinsurance premium ceded 28,180 16,623
Add: prepaid reinsurance premium opening 2,415 3,558
Less: prepaid reinsurance premium closing 8,329 2415
Reinsurance expense 22,266 17,766
33,184 12,183
26. Net insurance claims expense
Claims paid 17,560 11,508
Add: outstanding claims including IBNR closing 41,365 64,811
Less: outstanding claims including IBNR opening 64,811 78,055
Claims expense (5,886) (1,736)
Less: reinsurance and other recoveries received 11,318 7,126
Add: reinsurance and other recoveries in respect
of outstanding claims closing 34,747 54,317
Less: reinsurance and other recoveries in respect

of outstanding claims opening 54,317 54,162
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue (8,252) 7,281
2,366 (9,017)
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26.1 Claims development

Prior to

Accident Year 2015 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total
[ ccecemcmccnen.. Rupees in thousand « - = = = = =« = =« - - - |
Estimate of ultimate claims cost:
At the end of accident year 376,122 9,478 7427 5,752 9,773 408,552
One year later 271,631 3,346 660 538 0 276,175
Two years later 102,888 677 0 0 0 103,565
Three years later 76,718 311 0 0 0 77,029
Four or more years later 63,962 0 0 0 0 63,962
Current estimate of cumuiative ciaims 63,962 3ii 0 538 9,773 74,584
Cumulative payments /
adjustments to date (23,600) (311) 0 (450)  (8,858)  (33,219)
Liability recognised in the
statement of financial position 40,362 0 0 88 915 41,365
27. Net commission expense 2018 2017
Note Rupees in thousand
Commission paid or payable 10,168 4772
Add: deferred commission expense opening 845 1,231
Less: deferred commission expense closing 2,436 845
Net commission 8,577 5,158
Less: commission received or recoverable 5,963 6,164
Add: unearned reinsurance commission opening 796 1,448
Less: unearned reinsurance commission closing 1,849 796
Commission from reinsurers 4,910 6,816
3,667 (1,658)
28. Management expenses
Employees' benefit cost 28.1 50,538 41,124
Travelling 712 1,314
Advertisements and business promotion 67 244
Printing and stationery 343 412
Depreciation 6 3,548 3,897
Rent, rates and taxes 27 1,362
Legal and professional charges - business related 3,752 3,821
Electricity, gas and water 1,196 1,014
Entertainment 514 557
Vehicles' running 776 1,212
Office repairs and maintenance 368 181
Bank charges 57 357
Postage, telegrams and telephone 919 929
Annual supervision fee SECP 100 100
Provision for doubtful insurance /
reinsurance receivables 12 2,355 5,279
Miscellaneous 547 666
66,063 62,469
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28.1 Employees' benefit cost 2018 2017

Note Rupees in thousand
Salaries, allowances and other benefits 47,320 38,415
Charges for post employment benefit 213 3,218 2,709
50,538 41,124

28.2 The above expenses of management allocated to the underwriting business represent
directly attributable expenses and indirect expenses allocated to the various classes of
business on the basis of gross premium revenue.

29. Investment loss - net
Income from equity securities (available-for-sale)

- Dividend income 0 205
- Realised gain on investments at
fair value through profit or loss 346 4,530

Income from debt securities
- Return on fixed income securities

and deposits (held to maturity) 4,155 4,480

Net unrealised loss on investments
at fair value through profit or loss 9.2 (16,474) (14,129)
(11,973) (4,914)

30. Otherincome

Income from financial assets

Profit on savings accounts 452 56
Payable balances written-back 30.1 23,625 8,803
24,077 8,859

Income from non-financial assets
Fronting fee 948 679
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 6.4 0 837
Fair value gain on investment property 7 1,493 969

Provision for impairment against

term deposit receipts reversed 16.3 402 0
Sale of scrap 68 38
Receipt from the Holding Company 30.2 0 12,600
2,911 15,123
26,988 23,982

30.1 (a) The management, during the current year, has written-back balances aggregating
Rs.23.625 million payable to claimants, other insurers, reinsurers and various other
miscellaneous parties, who have not raised any demand since the last many years. The
written-back balances pertained to periods prior to the financial year ended December 31,
2015. The management has also obtained legal opinion from its legal advisor, who has
confirmed that under the provisions of the Limitation Act, 1908 the period of limitation is three
years; accordingly, the management may write-back these payable balances.
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(b) Balances written-back during the preceding year included provident fund balances of ex-
employees aggregating Rs.4.790 million, who had resigned or had been terminated at least
seven years ago. The Company's legal Advisor had advised that as these cases were time-
barred, the Company might write-back these payable balances.

30.2 This represents amount refunded by the Holding Company during the preceding year; the
Company had advanced this amount to the Holding Company in prior year for settlement of
gratuity benefits of Ex-Managing Director of the Company. Also refer contents of note 24.5.

31. Other expenses 2018 2017
Note Rupees in thousand

Legal & professional fees other than business related 577 1,486
Auditors' remuneration 311 1,056 919
Donations - without directors’ interest 10 10

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 6.4 14 0
Subscription 749 1,845
Insurance 844 810
Office expenses 260 239
Assets written-off 6.5 5 483
Repair and maintenance of computer equipment 180 114
Others 344 192
4,039 6,108

31.1 Auditors' remuneration

Statutory audit fee 400 400

Half yearly review 150 150
Regulatory returns 110 105
Certification charges 193 130
Out-of-pocket expenses 203 134
1,056 919

32. Taxation

Current year (3,511) (3,638)

Prior years - net 78 (1,445)
(3,433) (5,083)

Deferred (75) 1,112
(3,508) (3,971)

N No numeric tax rate reconciliation is presented in these financial statements as the Company

is mainly liable to pay tax due under sections 5 (Tax on dividends) and 113 (Minimum tax on
the income of certain persons) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Unused tax losses as at
December 31, 2018 aggregated Rs.161.829 million (2017:Rs.223.868 million).
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32.2

33.

331

34.

341

Management assessment on sufficiency of provision for income taxes

A comparison of provision on account of income tax with most recent tax assessment for the
last three tax years is as follows:

2017 2016 2015
----- Rupees in thousand - - - - -
Provision in financial statements for income tax 3,638 2,108 1,312
Tax assessed as per most recent tax assessment 5,083 2,092 585

As at December 31, 2018, as per the treatments adopted in tax returns filed that are based
on the applicable tax laws and decisions of appellate Authorities on similar matters, the
provision in financial statements for income tax is sufficient as there are strong grounds that
the said treatments are likely to be accepted by the tax Authorities.

Earnings per share 2018 2017
Rupees in thousand
Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders 15,989 41,452

--Number of shares--
Weighted average number of shares

outstanding during the year 50,000,000 _ 42,192,088
----- Rupee -----
Earnings per share - basic 0.32 0.98

Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any
convertible instruments in issue as at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, which
would have any effect on the earnings per share of the Company if the option to convert is
exercised.

Compensation of directors, principal officer and executive

The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements for remuneration including all
benefits to the chief executive, principal officer and executive of the Company are as follows:

| Chiefexecutive || Principal officer ||  Executive |
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017*
T Rupees in thousand - - - = = = === == == ===« |
Managerial remuneration 5,653 3,313 5,694 4,951 1,413 1,228
Leave encashment 0 0 716 623 238 183
Bonus 0 0 1,332 952 359 261
Gratuity 0 0 716 623 211 183
House rent 1,727 1,013 1,752 1,524 636 553
Utilities and others 2,601 1,892 915 870 141 123
Medical allowance 134 106 86 89 0 0
10,115 6,324 11,211 9,632 2,998 2,531
No. of persons 1 1 1 1 1 1

* Comparative figures have been restated to reflect changes in the definition of executive as
per the Companies Act, 2017.

Chief executive, principal officer and executive are also provided with other facilities,
including free use of the Company maintained cars.

34.2 No meeting fee was paid to directors during the current and preceding year.
34.3 No remuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Company.
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35.

351

35.2

ii)

iii)

36.

Transactions with related parties

Related parties comprise of the Holding Company, Associated Companies and key
management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries-out
transactions with various related parties. Details of significant transactions with related
parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed else where in these financial
statements, are as follows:

Key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the Company. The Company considers its Chief Executive,

directors and all members of the management team to be its key management personnel.

Significant transactions with related parties during the year

The Holding Company 2018 2017
Nature of transaction Rupees in thousand
Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Ltd. Amount received
against issue of
share capital 0 72,055

Associated Companies due to common directorship

Janana De Malucho Textile Mills Ltd.  Salaries & benefits paid 1,517 2,006

Expenses paid 89 107
Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd. Dividend received 22 45
Ghandhara Industries Ltd. ---do--- 18,473 17,762

Key management personnel

Salary and other employment benefits 5,361 4,596
Segment information

The Company has following four primary segments:

- Fire & property damage insurance provides coverage against damages caused by fire, riot
& strike, explosion, earthquake, atmospheric damage, flood, electric fluctuations and other
related perils.

- Marine & transport insurance provides coverage against cargo risk, war risk, damages
occurring in inland transit and other related perils.

- Motor insurance provides comprehensive car coverage, indemnity against third party loss
and other related coverages.

- Others insurance provides coverage against burglary, loss of cash-in-safe and cash-in-
transit, engineering losses and other coverages.
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Fire and | Marine
December 31, 2018 property and Motor || Others || Total
damage || Transport

| ececncenne Rupees in thousand « = = = = =« « = |
Premiumreceivable (inclusive of
federal excise duty, federal insurance fee,
and administrative surcharge) 21,692 15,290 25,595 2,877 65454
Less: Federal excise duty 105 489 1,115 63 1,772
Federal insurance fee 7 38 83 5 133

Gross written premium
(inclusive of administrative surcharge) 21,580 14,763 24,397 2,809 63,549

Gross direct premium 650 3,733 8,260 472 || 13,115
Facultative inward premium 20,928 10,991 | 16,074 | 2,325| 50,318
Administrative surcharge 2 39 63 12 116
21,580 14,763 24,397 2,809 63,549

Insurance premium earned 14,228 14,866 | 24,106 || 2,250 | 55,450
Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers 11,001 8,931 721 | 1,613 || 22,266
Net insurance premium 3,227 5935 23,385 637 33,184
Commission income 2,566 2,037 0 306 4,909
Net underwriting income 5,793 7,972 23,385 943 38,093
Insurance claims 704 | (10,452) 3,801 61 (5,886)
Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers 591 || (10,056) 880 333 || (8,252)
Net claims (113) 396  (2,921) 272 (2,366)
Commission expense (2,877) (2,960) (2,401) (338) (8,576)
Management expenses (22,462) (15,195) (25,104) (3,302) (66,063)
Premium deficiency expense 0 0 0 0 0
Net insurance claims and expenses (25,452)  (17,759) (30,426) (3,368) (77,005)
Underwriting result (19,659) (9,787) (7,041) (2,425) (38,912)
Net investment loss (11,973)
Rental income 876
Other income 26,988
Other expenses (4,039)
Finance cost 0
Share of profit of Associates - net 46,557
Profit before taxation 19,497
Segment assets 76,373 43,369 41,684 7,434 168,860
Unallocated assets 758,067
926,927

Segment liabilities 54,081 19,620 12,731 3,956 90,388
Unallocated liabilities 28,430
118,818
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Fire and || Marine
December 31, 2017 property || and Motor || Others Total
damage ||transport

Premium receivable (inclusive of
federal excise duty, federal insurance fee,

and administrative surcharge) 7,087 11,285 9586 2,107 30,085
Less: Federal excise duty 110 368 1,091 54 1,623
Federal insurance fee 6 28 80 4 118
Gross written premium

(inclusive of administrative surcharge) 6,971 10,889 8415 2049 28324
Gross direct premium 685 2,806 8,023 403 || 11,917
Facultative inward premium 6,285 8,062 321 1,635 16,303
Administrative surcharge 1 21 71 1 104
6,971 10,889 8415 2,049 28,324

Insurance premium earned 9,384 || 11,000 7109 || 2456 | 29,949
Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers 7.427 8,125 609 1,605 17,766
Net insurance premium 1,957 2,875 6,500 851 12,183
Commission income 3,030 3,335 0 451 6,816
Net underwriting income 4,987 6,210 6,500 1,302 18,999
Insurance claims 589 1,623 || (3,948) 0| (1,736)
Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers 610 1,479 2,584 2,608 7,281
Net claims 21 (144) 6532 2,608 9,017
Commission expense (1,938) (2,215) (700) (305)  (5,158)
Management expenses (15,617) (24,364) (18,117) (4,371) (62,469)
Premium deficiency expense 0 0 0 282 282
Net insurance claims and expenses (17,534) (26,723) (12,285) (1,786) (58,328)
Underwriting results (12,547) (20,513) (5,785) (484) (39,329)
Net investment loss (4,914)
Rental income 796
Other income 23,982
Other expenses (6,108)
Finance cost (48)
Share of profit of Associates - net 71,044
Profit before taxation 45,423
Segment assets 68,382 74,975 27,355 11,879 182,591
Unallocated assets - restated 738,093
920,684

Segment liabilities 45331 46,234 14135 5639 111,339
Unallocated liabilities 29,724
141,063
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37.

38.

38.1

Movement in investments

At fair value
Held to [|Available-|| through

maturity || for-sale profit or Totwl
loss
[ aeeen-n Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - |

As at January 01, 2017 47,377 782 86,830 134,989
Additions during the year 6,227 0 15,161 21,388
Disposals (redemptions) 0 0 (10,470) (10,470)
Fair value net loss

(excluding net realised gains) (32) (173) (14,129) (14,334)
Designated at fair value through

profit or loss upon initial recognition 21 0 0 21
As at December 31, 2017 53,593 609 77,392 131,594
Additions during the year 21,101 0 70,010 91,111
Disposals (sale) (20,000) 0 (9,654) (29,654)
Fair value net loss

(excluding net realised gains) (1,171) (103) (16,474) (17,748)
Designated at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition 190 0 0 190
As at December 31, 2018 53,713 506 121,274 175,493

Financial and insurance risk management objectives and policies

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (including interest / mark-up rate risk, price risk and currency risk). The
Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance.
Overall risks arising from the Company's financial assets and liabilities are limited. The
Company consistently manages its exposure to financial risk without any material change
from previous period in the manner described in notes below. The Board of Directors has
overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management
framework. The Board is also responsible for developing the Company's risk management
policies.

The individual risk wise analysis is given below:
Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will
fail to discharge its obligation and causes the other party to incur a financial loss. The
Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures by undertaking
transactions with a large number of counterparties in various sectors and by continually
assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of
business activities. As a result any change in economic, political or other conditions would
affect their ability to meet contractual obligations in similar manner. The Company's credit
risk exposure is not significantly different from that reflected in these financial statements.
The management monitors and limits the Company's exposure and makes estimates of
provisions for doubtful assets, if any. The management is of the view that it is not exposed to
significant concentration of credit risk as its financial assets are adequately diversified in
entities of sound financial standing, covering various industrial sectors.
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The carrying amount of financial
specified below:

assets represents the maximum credit exposure as

2018 2017

Rupees in thousand
Bank balances 26,428 90,164
Investments in equity securities 121,780 78,001
Investments in debt securities 53,713 53,593
Insurance / reinsurance receivables 123,349 125,014
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 34,747 54,317
Loans and other receivables 2,585 2,533
362,602 403,622

Provision is made for doubtful insurance / reinsurance receivables according to the
Company's policy. The impairment provision is written-off when the Company expects that it
cannot recover the balance due. During the year, provision for doubtful insurance /
reinsurance receivables aggregating Rs. 2.355 million (2017: Rs.5.279 million) have been
made. The provision for doubtful insurance / reinsurance receivables is shown in note 12 to

these financial statements.

The age analysis of amount due from insurance contract holders is as follows:

Past due one year but less than three years 0 10
y 2018 || 2017
Short t Long t Rat
ort term|Long term ing agency Rubesa i Bholsa

Bank Al Habib Ltd. A1+ AA+ PACRA 8,481 68
National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA -do- 48 47
Habib Bank Ltd. Al+ AAA VIS 17,453 89,997
United Bank Ltd. A1+ AAA -do- 44 52

26,026 90,164

The credit quality of insurance / reinsurance receivables can be assessed with reference to
external credit ratings as follows:

Reinsurance

Insurance / | recoveries Total

reinsurance against

receivables outsta!ndmg 2018 2017

claims
--------- Rupees in thousand - - --- - - -
A or above (including PRCL) 115,073 32,416 147,489 167,232
BBB 8,276 2,331 10,607 12,089
Total 123,349 34,747 158,096 179,321
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38.2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as

they fall due. Liquidity requirements are monitored regularly and the management ensures
that sufficient liquid funds are available.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities on an undiscounted cash

flow basis:
Carrying | Contractual | Upto one
amount cash flow year
28 eeeees Rupees in thousand - - - - -
Financial liabilities
Outstanding claims (including IBNR) 41,365 41,365 41,365
Insurance / reinsurance payables 32,843 32,843 32,843
Other creditors and accruals 22,562 22,562 22,562
Unclaimed dividends 555 555 555
Total 97,325 97,325 97,325
2017
Outstanding claims (including IBNR) 64,811 64,811 64,811
Insurance / reinsurance payables 39,501 39,501 39,501
Other creditors and accruals 14,286 14,286 14,286
Unclaimed dividends 557 557 557
Total 119,155 119,155 119,155

38.3 Market risk
Market risk means that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The objective is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimising the return. The market
risks associated with the Company's business activities are interest / mark-up rate risk, price

risk and currency risk.
a) Interest/ mark-up rate risk

Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest / mark-up
rates. Sensitivity to interest / mark-up rate risk arises from mismatching of financial assets
and liabilities that mature or repaid in a given period. The Company manages this mismatch
through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can be
adjusted. At the reporting date, the interest / mark-up rate profile of the Company's
significant interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments was as follows:

2018 | 2017 2018 || 2017
Effective interest rate
Percentage

Rupees in thousand

Fixed rate financial instruments

Financial assets

Investments - Pakistan Investment Bonds  7.00 to 12.00 7.00 to 12.00 53,713 53,593
Floating rate financial instruments

Financial assets

Bank deposits 3.75t08.00 3.25t03.78 22,678 66,038
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b)

c)

d)

Sensitivity analysis

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore a change in interest rate will not effect fair value of any
financial instrument. For cash flow sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments, a
hypothetical change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have
increased profit for the year by Rs.227 thousand (2017: Rs.660 thousand). It is assumed that
the changes occur immediately and uniformly to each category of instrument containing
interest rate risk. Variations in market interest rates could produce significant changes at the
time of early repayments. For these reasons, actual results might differ from those reflected
above. The analysis assumes that all variables remain constant.

Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in the market prices (other than those arising from interest / mark-up rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar financial instrument traded
in the market. The Company is not exposed to commaodity price risk. The Company is
exposed to equity price risk that arises as a result of changes in the levels of Pakistan Stock
Exchange-Index and the value of individual shares.

Available-for-sale investments are stated as per the policy detailed in note 4.8(c). The
carrying and market values of these investments have been disclosed in note 9.1 to these
financial statements.

As the Company is only exposed to price risk for investments classified in the available-for-
sale and at fair value through profit or loss categories, a 10% increase / decrease in share /
unit prices at the year-end would have increased / decreased profit for the year and equity as
at December 31, 2018 by Rs.12,178 thousand (2017: Rs.7,800 thousand).

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or liability will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign currency rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly where receivables
and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. At the reporting date, the
Company does not have assets or liabilities, which are exposed to foreign currency risk.

Held to | Available- At fair value | Bank accounts,

2018 enobrty | for-sale through profit |deposits, Iolans and| Total
or loss other receivables

Financial assets as per statement | ---c-cccccaaanan. Rupees in thousand - - =« === v eacuunann

of financial position
Bank balances 0 0 0 26,428 26,428
Investments in equity securities 0 506 121,274 0 121,780
Investments in debt securities 53,7113 0 0 0 53,713
Insurance / reinsurance receivables 0 0 0 123,349 123,349
Reinsurance and other recoveries

against outstanding claims 0 0 0 34,747 34,747
Loans and other receivables 0 0 0 2,585 2,585

53,713 506 121,274 187,109 362,602
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39.

Held to | Availabl At fair value Bank accounts,
2017 ol i through profit or | deposits, loans and |  Total
maturity | for-sale ;
loss other receivables
----------------- Rupees inthousand - == --=-----------
Bank balances 0 0 0 90,164 90,164
Investments in equity securities 0 609 77,392 0 78,001
Investments in debt securities 53,593 0 0 0 53,593
Insurance / reinsurance receivables 0 0 0 125014 125,014
Reinsurance and other recoveries
against outstanding claims 0 0 0 54,317 54,317
Loans and other receivables 0 0 0 2,533 2,533
53,593 609 77,392 272,028 403,622
2018 2017
Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position Rupees in thousand
Outstanding claims including IBNR 41,365 64,811
Insurance/ reinsurance payables 32,843 39,501
Other creditors and accruals 22,562 14,286
Unclaimed dividends 555 557
97,325 119,155

Insurance risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and
benefit payments or the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the
frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of
long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient
reserves are available to cover these liabilities. The above risk exposure is mitigated by
diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas.

The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements. Further,
strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of
claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims and
similar procedures are put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The
Company further enforces a policy of actively managing and prompt pursuing of claims, in
order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact
the Company.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the
outstanding claims provision and are in accordance with the reinsurance contracts.

Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct
obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to ceded
insurance, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under
such reinsurance agreements. The Company'’s placement of reinsurance is diversified such
that it is neither dependent on a single reinsurer nor are the operations of the Company
substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance contract. Reinsurance policies are
written with approved reinsurers on either a proportionate basis or non-proportionate basis.
The reinsurers, carefully selected and approved, are dispersed over several geographical
regions.
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a)

b)

Experience shows that larger is the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, smaller the
relative variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio
is less likely to be affected across the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The
Company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance
risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population
of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The Company principally issues the general insurance contracts e.g. marine & transport, fire
& property damage, motor and others. Risks under non-life insurance policies usually cover
twelve months duration. For general insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from
accidental fire, atmospheric disaster and terrorist activities. Insurance contracts at times also
cover risk for single incident that exposes the Company to multiple insurance risks.

Concentration of insurance risk

To optimise benefits from the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical
spread of risk is of extreme importance. There are a number of parameters which are
significant in assessing the accumulation of risks with reference to the geographical location,
the most important of which is risk survey.

Risk surveys are carried-out on a regular basis for the evaluation of physical hazards
associated primarily with the commercial / industrial occupation of the insured. Details
regarding the fire separation / segregation with respect to the manufacturing processes,
storage, utilities, etc. are exiracted from the layout plan of the insured facility. Such details
are formed part of the reports which are made available to the underwriters / reinsurers for
their evaluation. Reference is made to the standard construction specifications laid down by
IAP (Insurance Association of Pakistan). For fire & property risk a particular building and
neighbouring buildings, which could be affected by a single claim incident, are considered as
a single location. For earthquake risk, a complete city is classified as a single location.
Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered in a single vessel voyage are considered as
a single risk while assessing concentration of risk. The Company evaluates the concentration
of exposures to individual and cumulative insurance risks and establishes its reinsurance
policy to reduce such exposures to levels acceptable to the Company.

A risk management solution is implemented to help assess and plan for risk in catastrophic
scenarios. It provides a way to better visualize the risk exposure to the Company, which
determines the appropriate amount of reinsurance coverage to protect the business portfolio.

Reinsurance risk

As per general practice of the insurance industry, in order to minimise financial exposure
arising from large claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters into
agreements with other companies for reinsurance purposes. Such reinsurance arrangements
provide for greater diversification of business, allow management to control exposure to
potential losses arising from sizeable risk and provide additional underwriting capacity, which
also constitutes towards the growth of premium. A significant portion of the reinsurance is
effected under treaty, facultative and also under excess of loss reinsurance contracts to
protect the Company's exposure towards catastrophic losses.

To minimise its exposure to any possible losses from reinsurers' insolvencies, the Company
evaluates the financial condition of the reinsurers, their rating and monitors concentrations of
credit risk arising from the respective geographic regions, activities or economic
characteristics of the reinsurers.

In compliance with the regulatory requirement, the reinsurance agreements are duly
submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan on an annual basis.
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The concentration of risk by type of contracts is summarised below by reference to liabilities:

d)

Gross sum insured Reinsurance Net
2018 | 2017 2018 | 2017 2018 | 2017
----------------- Rupeesinthousand -------=-ccccuun--
Fire 23,520,401 5442985 18,345913 4,789,827 5,174,488 653,158
Marine 17,766,095 14,526,746 10,659,657 10,895,060 7,106,438 3,631,686
Motor 3,014,524 2,325,153 60,290 162,761 2,954,234 2,162,392
Others 413,492 426,355 305,984 370,929 107,508 55,426
44,714,512 22,721,239 29,371,844 16,218,577 15,342,668 6,502,662

Neutral assumptions for claims estimation

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claims
reserve is intended to result in neutral estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The
nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any
particular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a
separate, case by case basis with due regard to claim circumstances, information available
from surveyors and historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Case estimates are
reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information is available .

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the
estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Company, in which case
information about the claim event is available. IBNR provisions are initially estimated at a
gross level and a separate calculation is carried-out to estimate the size of the reinsurance

recoveries.

The estimation process takes into account the past claims reporting pattern and details of
reinsurance programs. The premium liabilities have been determined such that the total
premium liability provisions (unearned premium reserves and premium deficiency reserves)
would be sufficient to service the future expected claims and expenses likely to occur on the
unexpired policies as of the reporting date. The expected future liabilities are determined on
the Actuary's advice.

Sensitivity analysis
The risks associated with the insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of
variables, which complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. The Company considers that the

liability for insurance claims recognised in the statement of financial position is adequate.
However, actual experience may differ from the expected outcome.

As the Company enters into short term insurance contracts, it does not assume any
significant impact of changes in market conditions on unexpired risks. However, some results
of sensitivity testing are set-out below, showing the impact on profit before taxation, net of
reinsurance:

Net impact of increase / decrease in average
claim by 10 % on
Underwriting result | Shareholders' equity

2018 | 2017 2018 | 2017

------- Rupees in thousand - ------
Fire 11 24 11 24
Marine 1,469 14 1,469 14
Motor 292 0 292 0
Others 24 41 24 41
1,796 79 1,796 79
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40. Maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities

2018
Interest  mark-up bearing Non interest / mark-up bearing
oon o | | oo |srons| 9 | T
year year o year year L
....................... Rupees in thousand---------========-=
Financial assets on statement of financial position
Investments in equity securiies 0 0 0 1780 0 14780 121,780
Investments in debt securities 15218 38495 53743 0 0 0 53,73
Loans and other receivables 0 0 0 2,585 0 2585 2585
Insurance/ reinsurance receivables 0 0 0 123349 0 123349 123349
Reinsurance and other recoveries
against outstanding claims 0 0 0 4 0 WM U
Bank balances 2678 0 22678 3750 0 3780 26428
37896 3495 76301 206211 0 286211 362602
Off statement of financial position 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 37896 38495 76391 286211 0 26211 3625602
Financial liabilities on statement of financial position
Outstanding claims (including IBNR) 0 0 0 #4365 0 #1365 41365
Insurance/ reinsurance payables 0 0 0 283 0 a2 M
Other creditors and accruals 0 0 0 225 0 25 252
Unclaimed dividends 0 0 0 555 0 555 555
0 0 0 9135 0 9735 9735
Off statement of financial position 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 913 0 9735  913%

On statement of financial position gap 378% 38495 76391 188,886 0 186886 265217
Off statement of financial position gap 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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2017
Interest / mark-up bearing Non interest / mark-up bearing

pors | o | | g | row | S8 |
& | fotal W | fotal
----------------------- Rupees inthousand - - - -« === = - = ===+«
Financial assets on statement of financial position
Investments in equity securities 0 0 0 78001 0 78001 78,001
Investments in debt securiies 21005 32588 53593 0 0 0 8353
Loans and other receivables 0 0 0 253 0 258 258
Insurance/ reinsurance receivables 0 0 0 125014 0 125014 125014
Reinsurance and other recoveries
against outstanding claims 0 0 0 M3 0 W37 w317
Bank balances 66,038 0 66038 241% 0 24126 90,164
§T043 32588 119,631 283,991 0 263991 403622
Off statement of financial position 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total ST043 32588 119,631 283,991 0 28391 403,522
Financial liabilties on statement of financial position
Outstanding claims (including BNR) 0 0 0 64811 0 64811 64811
Insurance/ reinsurance payables 0 0 0 39501 0 39501 39,501
Other creditors and accruals 0 0 0 14286 0 14286 14,286
Unclaimed dividends 0 0 0 857 0 67 57
0 0 0 119,155 0 119,155 119,155
Off statement of financial position 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 119155 0 119155 119,185
On statement of financial position gap 87,043 32988 119631 164,836 0 164,836 284467
Off statement of financial position gap 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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41.

42,

43.

431

43.2

Fair value

IFRS 13 (Fair value measurement) defines fair value as an exit price. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

Following are the assets where fair value is only disclosed and is different from their carrying
value:

Fair value measurement
using level 1

2018 2017
Rupees in thousand

Investments in Associates 651,120 654,236

Capital risk management

The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern and meet the regulatory, solvency and paid-up capital
requirements so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders or
issue new shares.

Claims review

The management, during the year, has carried-out a comprehensive exercise to bring
fairness in the Company's outstanding claim liabilities; accordingly claim liabilities
aggregating Rs.15.660 million (2017: Rs.6.709 million), which are no longer payable /
settlements with the clients finalised, have been reversed / adjusted in the books of account
of the Company.

The management, during the preceding year, had also reversed / adjusted / written-back
health insurance claims aggregating Rs.0.779 million against which neither the claim related
documents were available nor the Claimants had raised any demand. These claims
pertained to financial years ended upto December 31, 2012. The management had also
obtained an opinion from its legal Advisor, who had confirmed that these claims were time-
barred and hence might be reversed / adjusted / written-back.
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44. Statement of solvency
Assets as disclosed in the statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2018

Property and equipment

Investment property

Investments in equity securities
Investments in debt securities
Loans and other receivables
Insurance / reinsurance receivables
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims
Deferred commission expense
Deferred taxation

Taxation - payments less provisions
Prepayments

Cash and bank balances

Investments in Associates - at market value

Total Assets

In-admissible assets as per the following applicable clauses
of section 32(2) of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (the Ordinance)

Rupees in
thousand

191,519
21,694
121,780
53,713
32,140
123,349
34,747
2,436
33,191
9,411
8,929
26,464
659,373
651,120

(A) 1,310,493

(d) 753
(9) 651,124
)] 33,191
(u)(i) 4,531
(u)(ii) 2,751
(u)(iii) 865
v) 17,866
Total in-admissible assets (B) 711,081
Total admissible assets (C=A-B) 599,412
Liabilities as disclosed in the statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2018
Underwriting provisions
Outstanding claims including IBNR 41,365
Unearned premium reserves 14,331
Premium deficiency reserves 0
Unearned reinsurance commission 1,849
Long term deposits 278
Insurance / reinsurance payables 32,843
Unclaimed dividends 555
Other creditors and accruals 27,597
Total Liabilities (D) 118,818
Total net admissible assets (E=C-D) 480,594
Minimum solvency requirement (higher of the following)
Method A - under section 36(3)(a) of the Ordinance 150,000
Method B - under section 36(3)(b) of the Ordinance 6,637
Method C - under section 36(3)(c) of the Ordinance 5,570 150,000
Excess in net admissible assets over minimum requirements 330,594
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45,

46.

47.

471

47.2

47.3

49,

The management, during the year, has transferred the balance lying in revenue reserve to
accumulated loss for fair presentation of the Company's financial statements.

Number of employees 2018 2017
Number of employees as at December 31, 25 26
Average number of employees during the year 25 25

Significant transactions and events affecting the Company’s financial position and
performance

Due to applicability of the Companies Act, 2017 to the financial statements of the Company,
amounts reported for the previous years have been restated. For detailed information please
refer to note 5.

The Company has decided to discontinue the gratuity scheme and introduce the provident
fund scheme with effect from January 01, 2019. Refer contents of note 21.

For a detailed discussion about the Company’s performance please refer to the Directors’
report.

Corresponding figures

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever necessary, for the
purpose of comparison; however, except for the following, no material re-arrangements and
reclassifications have been made in these financial statements.

As required by provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, unclaimed dividends have been
disclosed as a separate line item on the face of statement of financial position whereas
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets has been reclassified and made part of equity and
investments in Associates have been restated accordingly as fully detailed in note 5.

Date of authorisation for issue

These financial statements were authorised for issue on April 08, 2019 by the board
of directors of the Company.

~—

et Wbt Ml Ol et

Raza Kuli Khan Khattak ~ Gohar Ayub Khan Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak ~ Khalid Kuli Khin Khattak ~ Amir Raza Ashfaqg Ahmed
CHAIRM AN Chief EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DIRECTOR Principal Officer Chief Financial Officer
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THE UNIVERSAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS ON DECEMBER 31ST, 2018

Number of Shareholdings Total Number of | Percentage of
ShareHolders From To Share Held Total Capital

290 1 - 100 6,488 0.01

161 101 - 500 45,631 0.09

86 501 - 1000 64,833 0.13

242 1001 - 5000 589,420 1.18

50 5001 - 10000 351,559 0.70

23 10001 - 15000 278,774 0.56

13 15001 - 20000 227,392 0.45

3 20001 - 25000 68,175 0.14

2 25001 - 30000 51,927 0.10

8 30001 - 35000 260,059 0.52

4 35001 - 40000 150,662 0.30

3 40001 - 45000 124,602 0.25

3 45001 - 50000 150,000 0.30

1 50001 - 55000 51,000 0.10

2 75001 - 80000 150,771 0.30

3 80001 - 85000 248,576 0.50

1 85001 - 90000 85,630 0.17

1 90001 - 95000 93,075 0.19

1 95001 - 100000 96,181 0.19

2 105001 - 110000 216,086 0.43

1 155001 - 160000 158,136 0.32

1 175001 - 180000 177,028 0.35

1 250001 - 255000 254,000 0.51

1 275001 - 280000 276,226 0.55

2 295001 - 300000 597,861 1.20

1 320001 - 325000 322,180 0.64

1 400001 - 405000 403,500 0.81

1 415001 - 420000 415,237 0.83

1 485001 - 490000 490,000 0.98

1 610001 - 615000 613,203 1.23

1 42980001 - 42985000 42,981,788 85.96

911 50,000,000 100.00
THE UNIVERSAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS ON DECEMBER 31ST, 2018
Sr. # |Categories Sha:leul;;:iers Shares Held | Percentage
1 Executives 2 3,603 0.0072
2 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children 9 859,129 1.7183
3 Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties 1 42,981,788 85.9636
4  NIT and ICP 1 1,363 0.0027
5 Banks, Development Financial Instituations, Non Banking Financial Instituations 1 1,359 0.0027
6 Insurance Companies 1 22,243 0.0445
7  General Public (Local) 887 5,238721 10.4774
& Others 9 891,794 1.7836
TOTAL: 91 50,000,000 100.0000
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THE UNIVERSAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
DETAILED CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS ON DECEMBER 31ST, 2018

Sr. # Name Shares Held Percent.age of
Capital
Executives
1 Mr. Amir Raza 3,003 0.0060
2  Mr. Abdul Waheed Chaudhry 600 0.0012
Running Total: 3,603 0.0072
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children
1 Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak 613,203 1.2264
2  Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan 40,234 0.0805
3 Mr. Mushtag Ahmed Khan F.C.A. 3,153 0.0063
4 Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed 93,075 0.1862
5 Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak 93,075 0.1862
6 Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik 3,003 0.0060
7 Mr. Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak 3,003 0.0060
8 Mr. Mohammad Kuli Khan Khattak 7,883 0.0158
9 Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak 2,500 0.0050
Running Total: 859,129 1.7183
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties
3 Bibojee Services (Pvt) Limited 42,981,788 85.9636
Running Total: 42,981,788 85.9636
NIT and ICP
1 Investment Corporation of Pakistan 1,363 0.0027
Running Total: 1,363 0.0027
Banks, Development Financial Instituations, Non Banking Financial Instituations
1 Shirazi Investment (Pvt.) Limited 1,359 0.0027
Running Total: 1,359 0.0027
Insurance Companies
1 Gulf Insurance Co. Ltd. 22,243 0.0445
Running Total: 22,243 0.0445
General Public (Local) 5,238,721 10.4774
Others
1 Salim Sozer Securities (Pvt.) Ltd. 322,180 0.6444
2 AKD Securities Limited 403,500 0.8070
3 Fikrees (Private) Limited 2,500 0.0050
4 Deputy Administrator Abandoned Properties Organization 37,431 0.0749
5 Pearl Securities Limited 75,043 0.1501
6 Cliktrade Limited 40 0.0001
7 Topline Commodities (Pvt.) Limited 51,000 0.1020
8 Millwala Sons (Private) Limited 99 0.0002
9 Maple Leaf Capital Limited 1 0.0000
Running Total: 891,794 1.7836
50,000,000 100.0000
Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:
1 Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Limited 42,981,788 85.9636
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HEAD OFFICE EXECUTIVE / DEPARTMENT HEAD

Name

Designation

Telephone Office

Fax No.

Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan

Chief Executive

042-37311666

042-37230326

Mr. Amir Raza

Principal Officer

042-37355579

042-37230326

Mr. Abdul Waheed Chaudhry

D.G.M — Internal Auditor

042-37355426

042-37230326

Mr. Aftab Rashid

Assistant General Manager- IT

042-37355426

042-37230326

Mr. Ashfag Ahmed

Chief Financial Officer

042-37243168

042-37230326

Mr. Muhammad Alyas

Manager Re-insurance

042-37238616

042-37230326

Mr. Liagat Ali Shaukat

Company Secretary

042-37322813

042-37230326

Miss. Bushra Hina Mushtaqg

Manager Underwriting

042-37311608

042-37230326

BRANCHES
::; Br_Code | Branches Address Ph No. Fax No.
1 117 Principal Office, 3" Floor Nelson Chamber I.I | 0334-3360326 | 0334-3360326
Karachi Chundrigar Road, Karachi
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Investor’s Awarencess

As per direction of SECP vide their S.R.O. 924 (1) 2015 dated September
09,2015 we are pleased to incorporate the following informational message
on ‘JumaPunji’ for investor’s awareness in Annual Report of the Company

for the year ended December31,2018.

Key features:

&3 Licensed Entities Verification

£ Scam meter”

#/ Jamapunji games”

8§ Tax credit calculator*

& Company Verification

B Insurance & Investment Checklist
»? FAQs Answered

S g o .
LR R

e, s aret § o e
| i m—— ol

@

Jama
P unii

Bladl st Ay e

Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www. jamapunji.pk

Stock trading simulator
{based on live feed from KSE)

Knowledge center
Risk profiler®
Financial calculator

Subscription to Alerts (event
notifications, corporate and
regulatory actions)

Jamapunji application for
mobile device

3 Oniline Quizzes
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1/ We of

being a member(s) of The

Universal Insurance Company Limited and holder of Ordinary Shares as

per Registered Folio No./CDC Participant's ID and Account

No. hereby appoint of

or failing him / her

of

who is also

member of The Universal Insurance Company Limited vide Registered Folio No./CDC

Participant's ID and AccountNo. asmay/ our proxy tovote for me/

us and onmy / our behalf at the 59" Annual General Meeting of the company to be held on

Tuesday 30" April,2019 at 10:30 a.m. and any adjournmentthereof.

Signed this day of 2019. AFFIX

. _ REVENUE
Signature: STAMP
Witnesses: RS. 5/~
Signature: Signature:
Name : Name :
CNIC No. : CNIC No. :
Address: Address:
IMPORTANT:

1. This form of Proxy duly completed must be deposited at the Company's Registered office The
Universal Insurance Company Limited, 63-Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore not later than 48
hours before the time of holding the meeting.

2. AProxyshould alsobea member of the company.

3. CDC Shareholders and their Proxies must attach an attested photocopy of their Computerized
National Identity Card or Passport with this Proxy Form.
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Universal Insurance House

63-Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam

Lahore-54000 Pakistan

+92-42-3735 5426,3732 4244,
3732 4194, 3731 3878

Fax: 042-3723 0326

Email: info@uic.com.pk

Web: www.uic.com.pk




